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{formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
{formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited) ('the Company'), which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at 31 March 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the hest of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act’) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS’) specified under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and its profit
(including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAY) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our apinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Director’'s Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the cother information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Audit of the Financlal Statements

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company's Board of Directors, The
Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This respensibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's Responsibillties for the Audit of Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a matertal misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management,

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required fo draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Cur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern;

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation;

Chartered Accounlants Walker Chandiok & Co LLP is registered
wilh limiled Kabikity wilh idenlification
Offices In Bengaluru, Chandigarh, Chennal, Gurugram, Hyderabad, Kochl, Kolkala, Mumbal, Mew Delhl, Molda ang Pune number AAC-2085 and has ils registered

cffice at L-41, Connaughl Circus, OQuler
Circle, New Delhi, 110004, India



10.

11.

12,

Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We communicate with management, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we report that the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable
to the Company since the Company is not a public company as defined under section 2(71) of the Act. Accordingly,
reporting under section 197{16) is not applicable.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('the Order') issued by the Gentral Government of
India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we report,
to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowiedge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

c) The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account,
d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act,

@) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed as a director in”
terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company as on 31 March 2023 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in Annexure B wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of the
Gompanies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended) in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us :

i. The Company, as detailed in note 27 to the financial statements, has disclosed the impact of pending
litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2023,

i.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2023;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transfeired to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2023,

a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowiedge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any person{s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (the
Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;
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Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowiedge and belief, ne funds have
been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the
Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether racorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the

management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material
misstatement.

v, The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2023,

vi. Proviso to Rule 3{1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 requires all companies which use
accounting software for maintaining their books of account, to use such an accounting software which
has a feature of audit trail, with effect from the financial year beginning on 1 April 2023 and accordingly,
reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 {as amended) is not
applicable for the current financial year,

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

-
Sy DFT
Vijay D. Jain

Partner
Membership No.. 117961

UDIN: 23117961BGXSZH5638

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10 July 2023
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members
of Worldline ePayments India Private Limited (formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Private
Limited) on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and helief, we report
that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment and right of use assets.

(B} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment
and right of use assets under which the assets are physically verified In a phased manner over a
period of 2 years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant and
equipment and right of use assets were verified during the year and no material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification,

(¢c) The Company does not own any immovable property (including investment properties) (other than
properties where the Gompany is the lessee and the [ease agreements are duly executed in favour
of the lessee). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

{(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets)
or intangible assets during the year.

{e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended) and rules
made thereunder.

(i) (a) The Company does not hold any inventory accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

{(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits by banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets at any point of time during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii} The Company has not made any investmentin, provided any guarantee or security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(iii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under sections 185 and 186 of the Act.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{v) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be deposits within
the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(vi) The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company's services / business activities. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(vi} of the Order is not applicable.
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members
of Worldline ePayments Indla Private Limited (formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Private
Limited) on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(vii}{a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given ta us, the Company is
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund,
employees' state insurance, income-tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable,
with the appropriate authorities, though there have been slight delays in few cases. Undisputed
amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable are as follows.

Statement of arrears of statutory dues outstanding for more than six months:

Name of the | Nature of the | Amount | Period to | Due Date Date of

statute dues T in | which the Payment
lakhs) amount relates

Income Tax | TDS under | 79.44 June — 2022 7t July 2022 | 28" April 2023

Act, 1961 section 192B

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues referred in
sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any
dispute except for the following:

Name of the statute Nature of | Gross Amount Period to | Forum where
dues Amount paid which  the | dispute is
{Rs.in under amount pending
Lakhs) Protest relates
{Rs.In
Lakhs)

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 16 - AY 2003-04 | Assessing
Officer

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 20 - AY 2004-05 | Assessing
Officer

Income Tax Act,1961 Income Tax 11 - AY 2005-06 | Assessing
Officer

Income Tax Act,1961 income Tax 5 - | AY 2006-07 | Assessing
Officer

Income Tax Act,1961 Income Tax 146 - AY 2007-08 | Assessing
Officer

Income Tax Act, 1961 income Tax 9 - AY 2008-09 | Assessing
Officer

Income Tax Act, 1981 Income Tax 1,219 1,219 AY 2017-18 | Commissioner
of Income Tax
(Appeals)

Income Tax Act,1961 Income Tax 3 - AY 2018-19 | Commissioner
of Income Tax
{(Appeals)

The Maharashtra Stamp | Stamp Duty 740 - FY 2017-18 | Chief

Act, 1958 & penalty Controlling
Revenue
Authority, Pune

Profession Tax Act, 1975 | Profession 17 4 FY 2017-18 | Deputy

{Maharashtra) Tax Commissioner
of Profession
Tax (Appeals)

Employees State | ESIC FY 2009 -10 | Employees

Insurance Act, 1948 FY 2010-11 State Insurance
Court, Mumbai
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members
of Worldline ePayments India Private Limited (formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Private
Limited) on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1981 (43
of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books of accounts.

(ix)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any loans
or other borrowings from any lender. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix} of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(x) (@) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

{(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi} (&) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by
the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period
covered by our audit.

{b) According to the information and explanations given fo us including the representation made to us by the
management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act has been filed by
the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by the
management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during
the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nighi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered into
by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act. The details of such
related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc., as required under Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act. Further, according to the information
and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to constitute an audit committee under section

177 of the Act.
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members
of Worldline ePayments India Private Limited {formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Private
Limited) on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has an
internal audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the Act which is commensurate with the size
and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the period
under audit. '

{(xv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section 192 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company.

{xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a),(b) and (c} of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of the
Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank} Directions, 2016) does
not have any CIC.

{(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as the immediately
preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors
and management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

(xx) According to the information and explanations given te us, the Company does not meet the criteria as
specified under sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and according, reporting under clause 3(xx} of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members
of Worldline ePayments India Private Limited (formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Private
Limited) on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

{(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi} of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of sald clause under
this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

. "D':G»-\ L=
N s)“-"\
Vijay D. Jain
Partner

Membership No.: 117961
UDIN: 23117961BGXSZH5638
Place: Mumbai

Date; 10 July 2023
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Worldline
ePayments India Private Limited (formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited) on
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Independent Auditor’'s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
{formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited) (‘the Company’) as at and for the year
ended 31 March 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “"Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of the Company's business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Act.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing issued by the ICAI prescribed under Section 143{10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued by
the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such
internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company.
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Worldline
ePayments India Private Limited (formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited) on
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Annexure B {Contd)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company, (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or

disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. ‘

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial centrols with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of confrols, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion the Company has in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013
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Vijay D Jain

Partner .
Membership No.: 117961

UDIN: 23117961BGXSZH5638

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10 July 2023

Charlared Accountants Walker Chandiok & Co LLP is reglstered
with limited liabHily with ientificalion
Offcosin Bengaluru, Chandigarh, Chennal, Gurygram, Hyderabad, Kochi, Kolkata, Mumbal, Mew Dednl, Nolda and Pune numbaer AAG-2085 and has ks registered

office at L-41, Connaughl Circus, Quter
Circle, New Delhi, 110001, India



Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
{formerly known as Ingenico ePayments india Private Limifed)

Balance Sheet

as af 31 March 2023
{Currency: Indian Rupees in fakhs, uness otherwise slated)
Particulars Note As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
{A) Non-current assets
{a) Propery, plant and equipment 3 1,488 1,552
{b) Capital work in progress (3a) 8 335
{c} Clher intangible assets [2)] 1,255 224
{d) Intangible assels under development (3 106 181
{e) Financial assels
(i) Investments {5) - 1
(i} Other financial assets {7) 208 354
( Doferrad 1ax assels (net) {8) 2,632 3,329
(g) Income lax assels (net) 8,848 8,628
(h) Other assets 9} g 43
Total non-current assets 14,842 14,645
(B] Current assets
(a} Financial assets
i Trade receivables [ 8,189 6,854
{iiy Cash and cash equivalents {10} 24,320 29,706
{iiiy Bank balances other than (ii} abave {11} . 36
{iv) Other financia¥ assets 7 210 155
(b} Clher assets {9 239 293
Total current assets 32,958 37,044
Total assets 47,600 51,689
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
{A) Equity
(a} Share capital 12) 2,264 2,264
(b} Other equily {13 31,123 30,159
Total equity 33,387 32423
(B} Llabilities
{ly Non-current Habilities
(a} Financial liabliies
(i) Lease kablities (28 02 811
(b) Pravisions (16) 454 238
Total nan-current labllities 836 849
{ll) Current llabllities
(a) Financial liabliies
{iy Lease Habllittes (28 444 339
(ii} Trade payables {14)
1. Tolal outsianding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 28 20
2. Total oulsi_andlng dues of creditors olhar than micre enterprises and 8,650 13,703
small enterprises
(iil) Other financial liabikties {15) 524 824
{b) Other current liabitites {17) 2,196 2372
{c} Provisions (16) 1,327 1,159
Total current llabllities 13,3717 18417
Total Equity and Liabilltles 47 600 51,689
Summary of significant accounting policles 2)
The accompanying notes from 1 to 42 form an inlegral part of the financial statemenls
As per our report of even date allached.
For Walker Chandick & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Charlered Accountants Worldline aPaymeants India Private Limited
Firm's Registralion No: 001076 N/N500043 (formery known as Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited)
— R CIN: U742000H2005PTC 192623
* - i ] .J-’ > J —
N DM
ViJay D. Jaln Ramakrldhnan Ramamurthy Ramesh Narasimhan
Pariner Direcior Managing Director and CEQ
Membership Na; 117961 DIN: 03597514 DIN: 08540135
10 July 2023 10 July 2023
Kushat Shah
Mumbai Company Secrelary
10 July 2023 Membership No; A55163

10 July 2022




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
{formeny known as Ingenico ePayments india Privale Limited}

Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(1) Income
{a) Revenue from operations {18) 54,709 45,831
{b) Other income {nat) {18} 1,525 1,185
Total Income 56,234 47,016
{2} Expenses
{a} Employes benefits expense (20) 5,603 5,079
{b} Finance costs {21) 89 108
{c) Deprecialion and amortisation expense {22) 1,031 9,197
(d} Other expenses
1. Operating cost {23a} 42,109 33,976
2. Other expenses {23h) 5,970 5,701
Total Expenses 54,802 54 061
{3) Profit / {Loss) before tax {1-2) 1,432 {7,045}
{4) Tax expense
{a) Current lax - -
(b) Defeyred tax charge / {credit) {35) 706 (1,871}
Total tax expense / (credit} 706 {1,871}
(5) Profitf{Loss) for the year 726 {5,174}

{8) Other comprehensive income
{1) ltlems that will nol be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

{a) Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans {34} {38) 10

{b) Deferred tax on Employee Benefit Actuarial Gain {35} g (3)
Total other comprehensive Income {27} 7

{7) Total comprehensive profit/{loss) for the year 699 {5,167}
Earning per share {29)

Basic and diluted earning per share {Rs. per share) 321 -22.86
Summary of significant accounting policles 2

The accompanying notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of the financlal statements

As per our report of even date attached,

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Worldline ePayments India Private Limlted
Firm's Regisiration No: 001076N/N500013 {formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited)
CIN: U74200MH2005PTC 192623
p——
g e D IR
J \)OU'( k
Vijay D. Jaln Ramakri mamurthy Narasimhé
Partner Diractor Managing Director and CEQ
Membership No. 117961 DIN: 03597514 DIN: 08540135
10 July 2023 . 1:::Iji0\23
Kushal Shah
Company Secretary
Mumbai Membership No: A55163
10 July 2023 10 July 2023




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as Ingenico ePayments india Private Limited)

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year anded 31 March 2023
{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise staled}

Particulars

{A) Cashflow from cperating activities

Profil f (Loss) befare tax

Adjustment for:

Depreciaticn and amortisation

Allowance for expected cradit loss on trade receivables *
Provision for doubtful deposits and other advances

Bad debis

Interest expense on lease liabilities

Balances written off

Share based paymeént expense

Provision for chargeback

Sundry creditors balance writlen back

Excess provisions written-back

Other miscellanecus income

{Profit} on sale/discard of property, plant and equipment *
Interest on income-tax refund

Interest income on bank deposits

Unrealized foreipn exchange (gain)

Operating cash flow before working capital changes

Ad|ustment for changes In working capital:
(Increase) in trade recaivables
Dex g ) in other
(Increase)Decrease in other financial assets
(Decrease)fincrease in trade payables

Increase In provisions

({Decrease) in financial liabilities
{Decrease)fincrease in cursent liabilities

Gash genarated from operations

Income laxes paki (net of interest on refund of 1ax}
Net cashflow from operating activitles

"

(B) Cashilow from fnvesting activitles

Purchase of property. plant and equipment and intangible assets and CWIF
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment *

Interest received on bank deposils

Maturity of Invesiments in bank deposils

Het cashflow from investing activitles

(C) Cashflow from financing activities

Payment of lease kabilities

Interest paid on lease tabililies

Net cashfRow from financing activitles

Met {Decrease)fincrease In cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Gash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Year ended
31 March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

1,432 {7.045)
1,034 9,197
47 0
40 .
L1 1t
77 104
a7 -
265 -
268 99
(13) (1}
133) -
{63} (241
{2) o
(141) (17
(1,134) (762)
- {10)
1,770 1,236
(1,372) (1,661)
74 (100}
5 220
{4,613) 2,604
{99) 57
(298) {1,048)
{26) 501
(4,459) 2,490
{81) {271}
{4,640} 2,219
{1,647} (979)
2 0
1,080 1,247
a2 20,857
{433) 21,125
(338) (299)
{77 {104}
(@13 (403}
{5,386) 22,941
29,706 6,765
24,320 29,706

el




Worldline ePayments india Private Limited

{formerly known as fngenico ePayments India Private Limited)

Statement of Cash flow (Continued)
for ihe year ended 31 March 2023

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Cash and cash equlvalents comprise of:
Cash in hand *
Balance with hanks:
in current accounts
In fixed deposit account with original maturity of 3 months or less
Total ¢cash and cash equivalents
* Reprasenis vale less than Rs. 1kakh

As per our report of even date atlached.

For Walker Chandick & Co LLP
Charterad Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 001076N/NS00012

—
Vijay D. Jain

Partner
Membership No: 117861

Mumbai
10 July 2023

Motes:

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
0 [

847 1,240

23,673 28,366

24,320 29,706

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Worldline ePayments Indla Private Limited
{formerly known as Ingenico eFfayments India Privale Limited)

CIN; U74200MH2005P TC 192§23
Rai x‘%{n Ramamurthy arasimfhan

Direckyr Managing Direclor and CEQ
DIN: 03597514 DIN: 08540135
10 July 2023 10 July 2023

\[B—’ﬁ:& Shah
Company Secretary

Membership No: A55163
10 July 2023

1. This statement of cash flows has been prepared under the indirect method as sel oul in Ind AS 7 - *Statement of Cash Flows".

2, Cash and cash equivalent represeni Cash and bank batance {refer Note 10)




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
{formerly known as Ingenico ePayments Indla Frivate Limited)

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise sialed)

{A) Equity share capital

Particulars A t
Batance as at 1 April 2021 2,264
Changas in equity share capital dwing lhe year -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 2,264
Balance as at 1 Aprll 2022 2,264
Changas in equily share copilal during the year -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 2,264
{B) Other equity
Partizulars Resarve and Surplus D d  Total attributabl Total equity|
Securfiles Retatped  contribution from  to owners of the
premium earnings  Yitimate holdl Company
company
Balance as at 1 April 2021 5TAT (22,148) - 38926 38,326
Loss for the year - {6,174) - (5,174) 15,174}
(Cihar comprahansive income - 19 - 10 1%
Deferred tax on Employes Benefit Acluarial Gain / Loss - {3) - {3} {3}
Total Comprehensive Lozs - {5,187) . {5,167} {5,167}
Balance as al 31 March 2022 E7 4T (27,312) - 30,159 30,159
Balance as al 1 Aprll 2022 BT 471 {27,312) - 30,159 30,469
Prafii for tha year . 726 . 726 726
(Cthar comprehensive income - {36} - {38) {38)
Dafermred tax on Employes Benefit Actluarial Gain f Loss - -] - ] 9
Sharad based paymen| axpenses {refer nole no. 32) . - 65 265 68
Tital Comprahensive Loss . 699 166 964 f6d
Balance as al 31 March 2023 87,471 {26,613} 265 3,123 31,123

Nature and purpose of reserves

(a} Securltles premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilized in accordance with the provisions of section 52 of the
Companies Act, 2013

{b) Retained eamings

The cumulative gain or loss arising from the operafions which is retained by the Company is recognised and accumulated under the heading of
retained samings. At the end of the year, the loss afler lax is transferred from the statement of profit and loss to retained eamings.

As per our report of even date attached,

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
Firm’s Registration No: 001076NMN500013 {formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Privale Limited)

CIM: U'."42IJIZ.'!M'IHZﬂCDSPTQ7

iyt DI \\\7 &23,,, oA

192623
/

Vijay D. Jain Ramakrishnan Ramamurthy Ramesh Narasimhan
Partner Diracior Managing Director and CEQ
Membership No; 117961 DIN; 03557514 DIN: 08540135

10 July 2023 10 July 2023

h

Kushal S8hah

Company Secrefary
Membership No: A556163
10 July 2023

fumbai
10 July 2023




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
{formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Privale Limiled)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

1

24
o

]

{hnn

22

Company overview

Worldline ePayments India Private Limited (formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Privale Limited) ('the Company') was incorporated
on 3 February 2005 under the Companies Act, 1956, The main business of the Company is to act as an intermediary between merchants
and banks for elecironic payment services. It is also engaged in providing recurring payment services to its clienis in the form of ECS,
NACH, Direct Deblt, e-mandate services and such anclllary activilies fo payment services. The Company also acls as an intermediary fo
facililate delivery, review and payment of bills payable to any utility provider, service provider elc., in respect of sarvices of utililes availed
and to recelvefsend instructionsfocommunications in respect of the same. The Company is wholly owned subsidiary of Worldiine e-
Commerce Solufions BV/SRL (Erstwhile Ingenico e-Commerce Solutions BVBA/SPRL). During the year ended 31 March 2018,
TechProcess Payment Services Private Limited was amalgamated with the Company.

Summary of significant accounting policies
Basls of preparation
Statement of compliance

These financial statemenis have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounfing Standards {'Ind A3 as per Companles {Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’} and other relevant
provisions of the Acl.

The Company has consistently applied accounting policies to alt periods.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Direclors as on 10 July 2023,

Basis of measurement

The financial stalements has been prepared on a hislorical cosl basis except for following items:

- Certain financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value.
- Defined benefil plans - plan assels measured at fair value.

Uss of judgement and estimates
While preparing financial statements in conformity with Ind AS, the Company makes certain estimates and assumptions that require

subjective and complex judgments. These judgments affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assels,
liabilities, incoime and expenses, disclosure of contingent liabiliies at the statement of financial position date and the reported amount of
income and expenses for the reporting period. Financial reporting results rely on our estimate of the effect of certain matlers that are
inherently uncertain. Fulure events rarely develop exaclly as forecasted and the best estimates require adjusiments, as actual results may
differ from these estimates under different assumplions or conditions. The Company confinually evaluate Ihese estimates and assumptions
based on the most recently available information.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which ihe estimates are revised and in any future periods affecled,
Information aboul assumptions and estimation unceriainfies that have a significanl risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the year
ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 is included in the following notes:

Note 2.6 — Recognition of daferred lax assets, avallabilily of future laxable profil against which tax losses carried forward can be used.
Note 2.8 and 2.12 — Impairment test; key assumplions for underlying recoverable amounts.

Note 2.17 — Measuremant of defined benefit obligations.

Note 2.16 and 2.18 — Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies; key assumplions about the likelihood and magnilude
of an outflow

Note 2.11 - Impairment of irade receivables.

Current versus non-current classificatlon

The Company presents assets and liabilities in its Balance Sheet based on current versus non-cument classification.

An asset is classified as current when it is:

a) Expected lo be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

b) Held primarily for the purpose of rading,

) Expected to be realized within hwelve months after the reporling period, or

d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months afler the reporting
period.




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023
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Significant accounting policles (Continued)}

Current versus non-current classification (Continued)

Al ather assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

a) itis expected lo be setiied in normal operating cycle,

b) itis held primarily for the purpose of trading,

¢} it is due 10 be settled within twelve months after the raporting period

d) there is no unconditional fight lo defer the setilement of the liability for at least twelve months after the raporting period,

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred lax assets and liabllities are classified as non-current assets and
liabitities.

Operaling cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. Based on the
nature of service and Ihe time between the acquisition of assels and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has
ascertained its operaling cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assels and liabililies.

Segment reporting

Based on the "management approach” as defined in ind AS 108, the Chiel Operaling Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Company's
performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments and geographic
segments. The Company operates in one reportable business segmenit i.e. 'Payment processing senvicag'. Further, since all of its business
takes place in India, the Company does not have an reportable geographical segment.

Forelgn currencles
Functional and presentation currency

The linancial stalements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company's functionat and presentation currency. The
Company determines its own functional currency (the currency of the primary economic emwironment in which the Company operates) and
items included in the financial stalements of the Company are measured using hat functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in forelgn currencies are inilially recorded at the exchange rate prevailing at the dale of the transaction. Monetary assels and
liabilities denominated in foreign cumrencies are retranslaled into the Company's funclional currency at the rates prevalling on the reporting
dale. Non-monetary ilems that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are Iranslated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the intial transactlions.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulling from the setliement of such transactions and from the transiation at reporting date exchange
rates of monelary assets and liabililies denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the Statement of Profil and Loss.

Revenue

income from operations consist of revenue from providing paymenl processing services.

Revenue is recognized when a contract exists with the customer, measured based on the amount entitied to be received lor the
performance obligation and recognized when it satisfies its performance obligalion (transfer of control) which may be either overtime or at a
poirit in time.

Revenue from payment processing services include online and offline services, revenue for which is recognised as the services are
rendered based on contractual terms.

Integration fees, which do not result in the transfer of a service are normally recognised when the fulure services are provided.

Maintenance services revenue are recognised when it is not unreasonable to expect ultimate collection and is accounted rateably over the
peried.

Risk management services revenue and charge-back processing lees are recognized as the services are rendered.

Revenue excludas taxes collecled from cusiomers.

Contracts are unbundted inlo separately identifiable performance obligations and the consideration is allocaied to those identifiable
performance obligations on the basis of their relative standalone selling price of each dislinct goods or service promised in the conlract
Revenue is recognised for respective performance obligation either at the point in time or overlime, as applicable.

Contract assels are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Conlract assets are classified as unbilled
receivables {only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of lime is required, as per
contractual terms.

Uneamad and deferred revenue {"conlrac! liability) is recognised when there is billings in excess of revenues.

Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has nol disclosed the remaining performance obligation related
disclosures for contracls where the revenue recognized cormesponds directly wilh the value to the customer of the Company's parformance
completed to date, typically lo those conlracts where invoicing is based on fransaction processed.

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition

The Company's contracts with customers could include promises to transfer muliiple services 1o a customer. The Company assesses the
services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract. Identification of distinct pesformance obligation
involves judgement to determine the deliverables and the abilidy of the cusiomer 1o benefit independently from such deliverables.




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
{formerly known as Ingenico ePayments india Privale Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for ihe year ended 31 March 2023
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Significant accounting pollcles (Continued)
Income tax
Current tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable or tax recelvable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liablliles atiribulable 1o lemporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

The currenl income tax charge is calculated on the basis of lax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantlively enacted by the reporting date.
Managemenl periodically svaluates posilions faken in tax retums with respect to siluations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
inlerpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected lo be paid to the lax authorities.

Defarred lax

Delerred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheel method, on lemporary differences arising between the tax bases of assels
and liabilities and their canrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax liabiliies are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Defered income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from inilial recognition of an asset or liability in a
iransaction other than a business combination thal at the lime of the transaction affects nelther accounting profil nor taxable profit (tax loss).
Deferred income tax is determined using lax rales {and laws) thal have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is setiled.

Deafesred tax assels are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only If it is probable that fulure laxable
amounts will be available 1o ulilise those temporary differences and Josses. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that
future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a hislory of racent bosses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only
fo the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be
available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised.

Deferred tax assets —unvecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognisedireduced lo the extent that it is
probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefil will be realised.

Deferred \ax assels and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assels and liabilities and when the
deferred lax balances refate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assels and tax liabllities are offsel where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and inlends either lo seltle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and seltle the liability simultansousty.

Current and deferred lax is recognised in profil or loss, except to the extent that it relales to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. [n this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or direclly in equity, respectively.

Leages

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies o be a lease based on the requirements of the relevant slandard. Computation on of
the lease liabitities and right-to-use assets requires management to estimate the lease term (including anticipaled renawals) and ithe
applicabte discount rate.

The Company delermines the jease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to
extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an oplion o terminale the lsase if the
Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to
exiend a lease, or not lo exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers alt relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic
incenlive for the Company 1o exercise the Option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option lo terminate the lease. The Company
revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific 1o the lease being evaluated or for a portiolio of leases with
similar characteristics.

The Company as a lesses

"The Company's lease assel classes primarily consist of leases for buildings.

A conlract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right io contral the use of an identified assel for a period of fime in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified assel, the Company assesses whether:

{i) the contract involves the use of an idenlified asset

i} the Company has substantially all of the economic bensfits from use of the asset through the period of

Ihe lease and

{iii} the Company has the right to direct lhe use of the asset.

At he date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use assel (“ROU"and a corresponding lease liabllity for all
lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, excepl for leases with a term of twelve monihs or less (short-term leases} and fow value leases.
For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.
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{formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Privale Limiled)

Notes to the financial statements
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Significant accounting policles (Continued}

Leases (Continued)

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing ils right to use the underlying asset for the leass term at the lease commencement
date. The cost of the right -of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of Ihe amount of the initlal measurement of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct eosts incurred and an estimate of costs
to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underiying asset or site on which itis focated.
The right -of-use assets is subsequently measured al cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and
adjusted for any remeasursment of the lease liability. The right-of-use assels is deprecialed using Lhe straight -line method from lhe
commencement date 1o the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use assets or the end of the lease term. Right-of-use assets are
tested for impairment whenever there is any indication thal their carmying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments thal are not paid al the commencement date of the
lease. The lease paymenis are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the Yease or, If that rale cannct be readily determined, the
Company's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses ils incremental borrowing rale as the discount rale, Leasa liabilities
are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment as lo whether it
will exercise an extension or a \erminalion oplion. For leases wilh reasonably similar characleristics, the Company, on a lease by lease
basis, may adopt either he incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whole.

The lease liability is subsequently measured al amortised cost using the effeclive interest rate method. it is remeasured when lhere is a
change in future lease payments arising from a change in Company's assessment of whelher it will exercise a purchase, extension or
terrnination oplion.

Lease liability is further bifurcaled into current and non-current porlion; and the right-of-use assets have been separately presented in lhe
Balance Sheet and lease paymenls have been classifted as financing activities in the Stalament of Cash Flow.

The Company has adopted lnd AS 116, effeciive annual reporting period beginning 1 April 2019 wherein it has used ihe modified
relrospective approach, where it has recognised lhe lease liability on inifial application (i.e. 1 April 2019) at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the company's (lessee’s) incremental borrowing rate at the date of inilial applicalion & it has
recognised the a right-of-use asset at the date of inifial application, at an amount equal lo lhe leass liability, adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to hal lease recognised In the balance sheet immediately before the date of initial application.
Accordingly, the Campany has nol restated comparative information.

For transition, the Company has elecled nol fo apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to lases which are expiring within 12 months from the
date of transilion by class of asset and leases for which ihe underlying asset is of tow value on a lease-by lease basis.

The Company has also used the praclical expedient provided by the standard and therefore, has not reassessed whether a contract, Is or
contains a lease, at the date of initial application, relied on ils assessment of whether leases are onerous, applying Ind AS 37 immediately
before the date of initiat application as an alternative to performing an impairment review and used hindsight when determining the lease
term if the conlract contains options to extend or ferminate the lease.

The nature of expenses has changed from Jease renl in previous periods to depreciation cost for the right-to-use asset, and finance cost for
inlerest accrued on lease liability.

The Company does nol have any lease contracts wherein it acts as a lessor.

Impalrment of noh-financlal assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful Hife are not subject to amortisalion and are lested annually for impairment, or
more frequently if events or changes in circumsiances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assels are tested for impairment
whenever events of changes in circumstances indicale that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amounl. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's
fair value less cosis of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped al the lowest levels for
which there are separalely idenlifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assels or groups of assels
(cash-generating units). '

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the batance sheel comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-lerm deposils with an original maturity of
three months or less, which are subject o an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash flows

Cash flows are reporied using ihe indirect method, where by net profit {loss) before tax is adjusted for the effecls of transactions of a non-
cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past of future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associaled
with invesling or financing cash flows, The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities are segregated.

Trade recelvables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significanl financing components. The company
holds the lrade receivables with the objective of collecting the contraclual cash flows and iherefore measures them subsaquently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance,

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognised when Ihe Company becomes a party to the contraciual provisions of the instument. Regular way
purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the dale on which the Cempany commits to purchase or sell the
asset.

A. Financial assets

The Company determines the classification of ils financial assets at initial recagnilion. The classificalion depends on the Company's
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual ierms of the cash Rows.

{1} Classification
The financial assets are classified in the following measurement calg

b} Those o be measured at amortised cosl.
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Significant accounting policles (Continued)
Financial Instruments {Continved)

A. Financial assets (Continued)

{I} Classification {Continued)

Financlal assets at falr value through profit or loss (FYTPL)

Financial assets al fair value through profit or loss include financial assets hekd for trading, debt secuiities and financial assels designated
upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the Balance Sheet
at fair value wilh net changes in falr value presented as finance costs in profit or loss. Interests, dividends and gainfloss on forelgn
exchange on financial assets at fair value through profit or Yoss are included separately in other income.

Fair value through other comprehenslve Income (FVTOCH

Financial assets that are held for colleclion of contraciual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where lhe assels’ cash flows
reprasent solely payments of principal and inferest, are measured al fair value through other comprehensive income. Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive income, axcept for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue
and forelgn exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain
or foss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equily to profit or loss and recognised in olher
gainsi{losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income uging the effective interest rate method.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and Yosses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments
in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is hetd.

{I) Measurement
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments.

Amortlzed cost
The Company classifies its financial assels at amortised cost only if both of the faltowing criteria are met:

a) The asset is hetd within a business model wilh the objective of collecling the contraciual cash flows, and
b} The contracival terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interesl on the principal
outstanding.

Financial assets at amorised cost include trade and other receivables and other financial assets. After initial measurement at fair value, the
financial assels are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less impairment.

Amortlsed cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amoriisalion is included in finance income in the statement of profit and foss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in other expense.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
The Company classifies its financial assels at other comprehensive incorne only if both of the following eriterla are met:

a) financial assels are held within a business whose objeclive is achieved by collecting contractual cash flows en specified dates that are
solely payments of principal and intevest on the principal amounl outstanding; and

b) selling financial assats.
Fair value through profit or loss {FVTPL)

Fair value through profil or loss is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debl instrument, which does nol meet the criteria for
categorizalion as at amortised cost or as FVOCI, is classified as al FVTPL.

{1y Derecognition of financtal assets

The Company defecognises a financial asset when the contraciual rights to the cash flows from the assets axpire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substanlially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transfemed asset, the Company recognises its
retained interest in the asset and associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company refains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the ransferred financial asset, the Company conlinues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateratised borrowing for the proceeds received.

{V) Impairment of financlal assets

The Company assesses on a forward locking basis the expected credil losses (ECL) associated wilh its assets carried at amontised cost
and FVTOCI debt instruments. The Company follows 'simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on lrade receivable.
The application of simplified approach does not require the Company 1o track changes in credit risk. Rather, il recognizes impairment loss
allowance based on lifelime ECLs at each reporiing date, right from its inifial recognition. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For recogitition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, tha Company determines that whether there has been a
significant Increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in subsequent period, credil quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase i edit risk since initial recognilion, then the entity revers 1o
recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL. :
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Slignlificant of accounting policles (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

A. Financlal assets {Continued)

{Iv) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Lifetime ECLs are ihe expecied credil losses resulling from all possible default events over the expecled life of a financial instrument. The
12 month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporling date.
ECL is the difference between all contraclua) cash fiows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the entity expects 1o receive (j.e. all shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash Rows, the Company considers
the following:

{i) All contractual terms of the financial instrument {including prepayment, extension etc.) over the expected life of the financial instrument.

(i) Cash flows from the sale of callateral held or other credil enhancements that are integeal to the contractual tevms.

As a praotical expedient, the Company uses a provision mabix to determine impairment loss on portfolio of its trade receivable. The
provision matix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward-
looking estimates. At every reporling dale, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

B. Financlal liabllities

The Company determines lhe classification of its financial liabiliies al initial recognilion.
{h Classiftcation

The financial liabilities are classified in the following measurement categories:

a) Those to be measured as financial lfabilities at fair value through profit or loss,

b) Those to be measured at amoriised cost.

{ll) Measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of direclly atiributable
Iransaction cosis,

The Company classifies all financial liabiliies as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for financial liabilities at fair value
through profit of loss. Such liabllilies, including derivatives that are liabilities, shall be subsequently measured at fair value.

The Company's financial liabiliies include trade payables, smployee benefits payable and other payables.

Financial llabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial liabililies are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction cost incurred and are subsequenily measured al amorlised cosl,
using the EIR method. Any difference between the proceeds net of transaclion costs and the amount due on setlilement or redemption of
borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowing.

The elfective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instniment and of allocating interest charge over the
relevant effeclive interest rate period. The effeclive interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash outllow (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the efiective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expecled lifa of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorler periad, 1o the net carrying amount on initial recognition,
This category generally applies to borrowings.

{lll} Derecognitlon of financial llabllitles

A financial liability is derecognised when lhe abligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liabllity Is reptaced by another from the same lehder on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is trealed as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognilion of a new liability, and the
differerice in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

{Iv} Offsetting of financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reporied in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right o
ofiset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the assel and setlle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be conlingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankrupicy of the Company or the counterparty.

Interest and dlvidend income

interest income

For all financial instruments measured al amortised cost and inleresl bearing financial assets, interest income is recognised using the
effeclive interest rate (EIR), which is the rale that discounts the estimaled future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter peviod, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

When a foan and receivable is impaired, the Company reduces the cairying amount fo its recoverable amount, being the estimated fulure
cash flow discounted at the original EIR of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discounl as interest income. Inlerest income on
impaired financial asset is recognised using the original EIR.
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Signification accounting policies (Continued}

Property, plant and equipment

Property. plant and equipment are measured al cosl / deemed cost, less accumutated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cosl of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase laxes, after deducting
trade discounts and rebates, any directly attribulable cost of bringing the item te its working condilion for its intended use and estimated
attributable costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which itis located.

Subsequent costs are Included in the assel’s canrying amount or recognised as a separate assel, as appropriate, only when it is probable
(hat future economic benefits associated wilh the item will Row 1o the Company and the cost of the ilem can be measured reliably, The
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repair and maintenance
costs are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred,

Froperty, plant and equipment nol available for intended use are disclosed as capital work-in-progress.
Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Assets are depreciated on straight-line method based on the estimated useful life of assel, as determined by the managemenl or as per
rales prescribed under Part C of Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013.

Class of asset Life of the asset
Office equipmant 5 yoars
Computers and accessofies 3 years
Fumilure and fitures Cwar Iha prmary leace period of the premises:
Vehlcla 4 years

The assels’ residual values, depreciation method and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, al the end of each reporting
period. .

Depreciation is not recorded on capilal worl-in-progress uniil construction and instafiation is complete and the asset is ready for its intended
use.

A property, plant and equipment is eliminated from the financial stalements on dispesal or when no further benefit is expected from its use
and disposal. Losses arising from relirement and gains or losses arising from disposal of properly, plant and equipment are recognized in
the Slatement of profit and loss.

Intangible assets

Recognitlon and measurement

Kdentifiable intangible assels are recognised when the Gompany conlrols the asset, it is probable that fulure econemic benefits attributed o
the asset will flow 1o the Company and 1he cos! of the assel can be reliably measured, Intangible assets are staled at cost less accumetated
amorlisation and impairment, Intangible assets are amorlised over thelr respeclive individual eslimated useful lives on a straight-line basis,
from the date that they are available for use. The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors
including the effects of absolescence, demand, competition and olher economic factors (such as the stability of the industry and known
technological advances) and the leve) of maintenance expenditures required to oblain the expected future cash flows from the asset.

Amortisation methods and periods
The Company amortises intangible assets with a finite useful life using the siraight-line method over the following periods:

Class of assel Life of the aaset
Compuler software 35 years

Amortisation method and useful lives are reviewed at each reporling date.
An intangible assel is derecognized an disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use and disposal,

Losses arnising from retirement and gains or losses arising from disposal of intanglble assels are measured as the difference between the
nel disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of profit and loss.

Goodwill arising on amalgamation in accordance with court scheme

Goodwill arising on amalgamation of TechProcess Payment Services Private Limited has been recognised in accordance with court
scheme. Said goodwill has been amortised in accordance with the court scheme for which Company has estimated useful life of 5 years.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Gompany has a preseni obligation {legal or construclive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an oulfiow of economic benefils will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable eslimate can be made of the amounl of the obligation.
The amount recagnized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required o sellle the prasent cbligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. The discount rate used to detennine the present
value is a pre-tax ralz that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liabitity. The increase
in the provision due to the passage of lime is recognised as interest expense.

When some or all of the economic henefits required lo seltle a provision are expecled to be recovered from a third parly, the receivable is
recognized as an asset, if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured
reliably.
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Signlificant accounting policles {Continued)

Employee benefits

(i} Short-term obligalions

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled whally within 12 months after the ond of
the period in which the empioyees render the refated service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up fo the end of the reporling

period and are measured at the amounts expected to be pald when (he liabilities are setled. The liabiliies are prasented as current
employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

{#) Share based compensation

The Company recognises compensation expense relating to share based payments using the fair value in accordance with Ind AS 102-
Share based payment. Selected employees of the Company recelve remuneration in the form of equily setlled instruments, for rendering
services over a defined vesting period and for ullimate holding company’s performance based stock oplions over the defined peried. The
astimated fair value of awards is charged 1o income on a siraight-line basis over the requisite service period for each separately vesling
poriion of the award with a corresponding increase to share options outstanding account.

{iif) Other long-term employee benefi obligations

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected 1o be setiled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the relaled service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected fulure payments to be made in
respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projecled unit credit melhed. The benefils are
discounted using the market ylelds at the end of the reporting peried on govemment bonds that have terms approximaling to the terms of
the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in acluarial assumptions are recognised in
profil or loss.

The obligations are presenled as current liabililies in the balance sheet if the enlity does not have an uncondilional right lo defer settlement
for at least twelve months after the reporiing period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expscted fo occur.

{iv) Post-employment obligafions

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
{a) defined benefil plans such as gratuity, and
{b) defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Defined benefit plans - Gratuity obligations

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit graluily plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of Ihe reporling period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuary
using the projectad unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated fulure cash outllows by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approxiinating lo the lerms of the relaled obligation.

The net interesl cost is caloulated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan
assets. This coslis included in employee benefit expense in the stalement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjusiments and changes in acluarial assumplions are recognised in the pericd
in which they occur, direclly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained eamings in the statement of changes in equity
and in the balance sheel,

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately
in profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution pian

The Company pays providenl fund contributions o publicly administered provident fund as per local regulations. The Company has no
further payment obligations ence the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined conbribution plans and
the contributions are recognised as employes benefit expense when they are dus. Prepaid conlributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the fulure payments is avallable.

Contingent liabllities
Contingent Hiablliles are possible obligations whose existence will only be confirmed by lutuse events not wholly wilhin the control of the
Company, or present obtigations where it is not probable that an culflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannol

be measured with sufficient reliability.
Contingent Jiabilities are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed unless the possibility of an oulflow of economic
resources is considered remote,

Earnings per share

{ Basic eamnings per share

Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing:
- the profit/{loss) altribulable lo owners of the Company;

- by the weighted average number of equily shares oulslanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares
issued during the year.
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Significant accounting policies (Continved)

Earnings per share (Continued)

{l) Dituted earnings per share

Diluled eamings per share adjusts the figures used in the delermination of basic eamings per share to take into account:

- the after income tax effect of interast and other financing costs associated wilh dilutive potential equity shares, and
- the weighted average number of additional equily shares that would have been oulstanding assuming the conversion of all dilulive

potential equity shares.

Rounding off amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the neares! lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule
HI, unless olherwise stated.

Standards issued but not effectlve

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide nofification dated 31 March 2023 nolified Compantes (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2023 which amends certain accounting standards, and are effeclive 1 April 2023. The Rules predominanlly amend Ind AS 12-
Income Taxes and Ind AS 1-Presentation of financial statements. The other amendments to Ind AS nolified by these rules are primarily in
the nature of clarifications. These amendments are not expected to have any malerial impact on the Company in the current or fulure
reporiing periods and on foreseeable fulure transactions.
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Nates fa the Ananglal {c
as al 31 March 2023

{Cumency: Indian Rupaes In lakhs, untess atherwise slated)

{3 Property, plart and equip

Particulars Compulars and T and Qffice Rig 1o usa assels - Right to use assets . TeAal|
1 Tixh yuly t Builings Computer

Gross ¢arylng amount

As al 1 April 2021 1.218 ave 105 1.484 - .18
Additions* 66 - 0 - - 208
Disposals* ] - ] - - ]
Az at 31 March 2022 1,574 379 105 1,481 - 3,638
‘Accumutated depreciation

As at 1 April 2021 a02 106 69 30 - 1227
Dapreclation 256 as 15 a2 - €68
Disposaly B - 0 - - 8
As at 31 March 2022 1,050 191 74 672 . 1,067
Net camrying amount as at 31 March 2022 5_24 188 31 )] - 1,552
Gross carrying amount

As ol 1 Apil 2022 1574 are 106 1.481 - 3.5
Addilions 504 - 2 74 212 92
Disposals 140 - 2 - - 143
As at 31 March 2027 1,938 fXy:] 104 1,558 212 4,138
Accumulated depreciation

As at 1 Aprit 2022 1050 191 74 872 - 1,087
(Depracialion 84 g5 5 361 1 B5¢
Disposals* 140 ] 3 - - 143
As at 31 March 2023 1,204 276 [ 1,033 11 2,10
|Met carrying smount as at 31 March 2023 ) 103 18 522 201 1,408 |

* Reprasenis value less than Rs. 1 lakh

{2a) Capital work In prograss

Amount in CWIP for the period of
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years More than 3 yaars Tolsl
Projects In prograss 318 - - - 1
Projects tampararly suspended - - - - .
(As at 31 March 2022 335 + - + 335
Profects in progress & - - - [
Projects tomporaily suspanded - - - - .
As at 31 March 2023 ] - - - &
A3 o the dals of tha balance sheal, thera are no capilal work-in-progress proj whose Hetion la due or has dad lhae cost, based on approvad plan,
Parliculars Total

Opening balance at 1 Aprl 2021 -

Additions a3s

Less: Capilalisad during the year -

Closing balance as al 31 March 2022 335

Opening balance at 1 April 2022 335

Addilions 8

Less: Capitaiised during Lhe year 35

Closing balanca a5 al 31 March 2023 [

{3b} Intanglble assats undar development

Amouni in IMangible assats under developmend for the parled of
Particulars Less than 1 year 1:2 yoars 2-3 yoars More than 3 years Totsl
Projacs in progress 181 - - - 189
Projecis lemporarily suspended ) . - . - .
As at 31 Mareh 2022 181 - - . 189
Projecis n progress a2 24 - - 106
Projacis iemporanly suspsnded - - - - .
As al 31 Warch 2023 a2 24 - - 106
A% on the date of the balance shesi, thera are no tnlangible assats under develop L prajecis wiose pleton Is due of has ded the cost, based on approved
plan.
Partlculars Total

Opaning balance at 1 April 2024 25

Addilions {salary and professional feas) Fal

Loss: Transfer lo inlangibles 62

Closing balance ax at 31 March 2022 181

Opening balance at 1 April 2022 184
Addilions {salary and professional fees) 955
Less: Transfer lo inlangibles 1,030
Closing balance &5 at 31 March 2023 106
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(Currency: Indian Rupess i lakhs, unless alharwise staled)

() Intanglble assets

Particulars Comput fh Goodwlll * Tota)
Gross oaying amount

As al 1 April 2021 &77 42,233 42,910
Addilions 289 . %69
| Dispozals - - -
As at 34 March 2022 946 42,2393 43,179
Accumdated amortisation

As at 1 April 2021 643 3,703 4,426
Amortisation ] 8,450 8,529
Disposals - . .
As at 31 March 2022 722 42,233 42058
ot cammylng smount as at 31 March 2022 224 - 224
Gross carrying amount

As at 1 Apdl 2022 948 42,233 43,178
Additions 1,208 - 1,206
Disposals 122 - 123
As at 31 March 2023 2,029 42,233 44,262
|Accumulated amortisatlon

As at 1 Apnil 2022 T22 42,233 42,955
{Amontisation 178 - 176
|Disposats 123
As at 21 March 2023 43,007
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2023 3,255

* Refer note no. 24 - Gaodwil arising on




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
{formerly known as Ingenico ePayments Indfa Private Lintted)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued}
ag at 31 March 2023
{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, untess olherwise slaled)

(5)

{6)

As at As at
M March 2023 31 March 2022
Investments
Non-current Invesiments [msasured af cost}
Investment in equity shares of Saraswal Co-Operalive Bank (unquoted) - 1
Nil {Previous year: 5,000) equily shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid)
Tolal non-current Investmeants - []
Trade receivables
Unsecured, conslderad good 8,189 6,854
Slgnificant increase in credit risk - -
Creadit impaied 256 208
B 444 7.062
Less: Allowance for expectad credil loss {265) {208)
Total current lrade recelvables 8,189 5,854
Trade recelvables aging achedule
O ding for g periods irom due date of payment
As at 31 March 2023 Mot Dus ** Leas than ¢ months & months -1 year 1«2 yaar Z-3yewr More than 3 years Tetal
Undisputed Trade fvabk d good 1.217 6,957 13 - 2 b,159
Undispuled Trade Recer —which have ) ) )
significant increasa In credit risk i
Undisputed Trade Recsivablas ~Cradi Impail - 184 26 18 27 255
(Disputed Trade Recsivables—considered good * - - ] o - L]
(Disputad Trade Receivables —which have . .
sigrificant increasa in eredit risk . .
(Disputed Trade Raceivables — cradi| impaired - .
Lass: ANowance for expecled credil oss - {164) (26) ey 20 (2553
1.217 8957 13 Q 2 - 8,109
As at 31 March 2022
Undispuled Trade wabk 1 good 9 5,845 1" 5 - - €.842
Undispulad Trada Racaivablas —which have . R
significant incraass in credit risk - - -
Undispuled Trade Receivables —Credit Impaired - | x} 5 ! 20 200
Dispulad Trade Receh idered good - 0 1 1 M - 12
Cispuled Trade Receivables —which have
significant increase In credi risk ) ) "
Dispuled Trads Recelvables — cradil impaked - - 8 - - ]
Less: Alowance for sxpscled credil foss - (93) (59) {36) (20} {208)
981 5855 12 6 - - B854

* Represent value iass than Rs. 1 takh
“ Reprasenis unbilled reverus




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
{fornerly known as ingenico ePayments India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Confintued)
as al 31 March 2023
{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless oiherwise stated)

{7} Other financial assets
U d, consldered good unless otherwise stated
Non-current financief assels
Bank deposils {Lien againsi performance guaraniea)
Securily deposits
Security deposit to related parties (Refer note no, 31)
Security deposit to olher than relaled parlies
Unsecured, considered good
Credil impaired
Less: Impaimment allowance for securily deposit

Total non-current financlal assets

Current financlal assets

IMerest accrued bul nod due on fixed deposits with bank
Security deposits to related parties (Refer note no, 31)
Security deposits lo other than relaled parties

Others - receivables

Less: Cradil impaired

Total current financial assets
{8) Deferred tax assets (nef)
Slgnificant components of deferred tax assets

Defarred tax assets

Differerce between book and tax value of PPE and inlangible assels
Carry forward loss and unabsorbed depreciation

Provision for doubitfut debts

Provision for doubtful deposits and advance

Provision for bonus

Frovision for leave encashment

Lease liabilities (et of right-of-use assels)

Pravision for retirement benefits

Provision for other expenses and chargeback

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 Maych 2022
4 -
L) 123
173 2
T8 53
{19} {53)
288 354
135 B
2 -
3 2
-1 o7
(26) 25
210 155
119 137
1,748 2,503
64 52
30 17
99 118
62 ag
26 36
133 108
361 e
2!532 3|329

Deferrad tax assels have been recognised as at 31 March 2023 as the Company expecis Wlilisation of the unused tax losses and taxable/deductible temporary differences wilhin ils
appropriale perlod of camry forward, The unwiilised tax losses of the Company are allowed to be carled forward for a pericd of elght years under ihe applicable tax laws and

unutitised tax depreciation can be camied forward indefinitely.

{8) Other assets

MNon-currant asseats
Unsecured considered good
Prepald expenses
Advance for expenses
Credit impaired
Less: Impairment allowance for advance for expenses

Total non-current assets

Current assels

Unsecurad considered good

Prepaid expenses :
Goods and services tax credd available
Advance for expenses

Total current assets

) 4
15 -
{15} -

] a3
86 85
72 123
» 85

239 293




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
{formery known as Ingenico ePayments india Privaie Limited}

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)}
as al 31 March 2023
(Currancy: Indian Rupees In lakhs, unless olherwise stated)

{10} Cash and cash equivalents
Cash In hand *

Balance with banks
In current accouMs
In fixed deposit account with original maturily of 3 months or less

Total cash and cash equlvalents
* Repressnl valuo less than Rs. 1lakh
Modal balance:

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
0 o

647 1,340

23,673 28,3266

24,220 29 706

The Company has amangements for Noda) accounts with various banks. The nodal accounts are operaled as per Reserve Bank of India (RBI') guidelines periaining 1o setilement

of payments for electronic payment iransactions involving Intermediaries. The balance in nadal accounts rep ts money

and is used for settling of dues to various merchants as per RBI guidelines,

{11) Other bank balances
Bank deposits due lo malure before twelve months from the reporfing date
Deposits {Jien against performance guarantees) due lo malure before twelve months from he reporiing date

Total other bank balances

Detalls of bank deposits
BanX deposils with original maturity of three months or less included under ‘Cash and cash equivatents’
Bank deposils due to mature within twelve monihs of the reporting date included under "Other bank balances™

Bank deposils due lo mature afler twelve months of the reporting date included under "Other non-current financial assets”

{ed from customers on fransaclions undentaken

- T
- 29
S 36
23,673 28,366
- 36

4 -
23877 28402




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
{formenly known as lngenico ePayments india Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Confinued)
as al 31 March 2023
{Cwrency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31 March 2023 3 March 2022

{12) Equity share capital
Parficulars
Authorised
98,070,000 [31 March 2022; 98,070,000] equily shares of Rs,0 each . 9,807 9,807
9,807 9,807
Issued, subscribed and fully pald-up
22,637,413 [34 March 2022: 22,637,413] equily shares of Rs.10 each 2,264 2,264
2,264 2,264 |
{a) Reconelllation of the numbsr of equlty shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
As at As at
Partieulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Number Amount Number Amount
Equity shares
At the commencement of the year 2,26, 37,412 2,264 2,26,37,413 2,264
Shares issuad during \he year - - - -
At the end of the year 2,26,37.413 2,264 2,26,37.413 2264
(b} Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equlity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shawes having a par value of Rs, 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares Is entitled 1o one vole per shars held. The dividend proposed
by the Board of Direclors js subject to approval of the shareholders at the Annual General Meeling except in ¢ase of Interim dividend. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the
holders of equily shares shall be entiltad 1o receive balance of ihe remaining assets of ihe Company, after distribullon of all preferential amounts and the distribution shall be In
proportion to the number of equily shares hetd by the sharehokiers.
{c) Detalls of shareholding
As at As al
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Humber of shares Amaount In {Rs.)  Number of shares Amountin (Rs.)
Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully pald-up hald by
Waorldline e-Commerce Solulions BV/SRL
{Erstwhile Ingenico e-Commerce Solutions BVBA/SPRL) 2,26,37,412 2,284 2,2637.412 2,284
Ingendco Heldings Asla |l Limiled {uple 28 June 2022) * - - 1 ]
Retall Intemational Holding S.A.S. (w.e.f. 28 June 2022} * ] 1 0 - -
* Represents value less than Rs. 1 lkh
{d} Particutars of shareholders holding mere than 5% shares of a class of shares
As at As at
Particulars : 31 March 2023 3% March 2022
% of total shares % of iotal shares In
Number of shares In the class Number of shares the class
Equity shares of R5. 10 each fully paid-up held by
Worldiine e-Commevce Solutions BV/SRL
{Evstwhile Ingenico e-Commerce Solulions BVBA/SPRL) 2.2637,412 99.99% 22637412 99.59%
{8} Particulars of share held by Promoters at the end of the year
As at As at
Promoter Name 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Number of % of tolal shares % Change % of total shares In % Change during
shares In the class during the year Number of shares the class e year
Worldline e-Commerce Solutions BW/SRL
(Erstwhile Ingenico e-Commerce 2,26,37,412 29.89% 0% 2,26,37 412 99.99% 0%
Solutions BYBAISPRL)
Retail Inlematlonal Holding S.A.S. {w.e.l.
28 June 2022) 1 0.01% 100% - 0.00% 0%
{f) Buy back of shares or shares allotted by way of bonus shares:

‘The Company has not made any buy-back of shares, nor there has been an ssue of shares by way of bonus share or lssue af share pursuant 1o contract without payment being
received / paid in cash for ihe perlod of five years immediately preceding the balance shest date.




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
{formenly known as Ingenico ePaymenis India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 37 March 2023
{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise slated)

{13) Other equity

Securilies premium
Relalned earnings
Deemed conlribution from parent company

Total other aquity
Movemend of olher equity

Securitles premjum
At the commencement of the year
0On shares lssued during the year

At the end of the year

Retained #arnings

At the commencement of the year

Profit f {Loss) for tha year

(Hher comprehensive incomef{loss) for the year
Deferred tax on Employee Benefit Actuarial Gain f Loss

At the end of the year

Desmed contribution from Ultimate holding company
At the commencemant of the year
Share based paymenl expense (Refer nole 31 & 32)

At the end of the year

As at As al
31 March 2023 M March 2022
87,471 57471
[26,613) (27.312)
268 -
31,123 30,159
57471 57,474
57471 57,471
{21,312 (22,145)
728 {5,174}
[38) 10
9 3}
{26,613} {27,312}
265 -
268 -




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
{formerly known as Ingenico ePayments Indla Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements {Confinued)
as at 31 March 2023
{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As al
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
{14) Trade payables
Trads payables
Due to related partles (Refer note no. 31)
- Dues of micre enterprises and small enlerprises (Refer ncle no, 30} - -
- Dues of ¢reditors ofher than micro enterprises and small anterprises 1,027 5,074
Dus to others
- Dues of micro enlerprises and small enlerprises (Refer nole no. 30) 28 20
- Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises * 7.6 7,629
[N 13723,
Trads paysbles ageing schaduls
Qut ding for g perlods from due date of paymant

As at 31 March 2023 Lags than 1 year 1-2year 23 yaay More than 3 years Total
MSME 28 - - 28
(Dispuied dues - MSME - - - .
Others 7,770 376 23 276 8545
Dispuled dues - Otherz - - - 13 13
Tatal 7,798 378 423 89 8,088
A8 at 39 March 2022
MSME 20 - 20
Dispulod dues - MSME . - .
Cuhers 10,870 1.521 1141 158 13,690
Dispulad duas - Olhwrs - 12 13
Total 10,290 152 1,154 158 13,723

* This includes Rs. 128 lakhs [31 March 2022 Rs. 132 lakhs] pertains to merchani setilemen eroneously credited to Company's Corporate bank accound instead of Setlement

bank account.

{15} Other financial liabilitles
Currant
Merchant deposil
Employee benefits payable
Book overdraf
Credilors for capital expenditure

Total current financlal Nabllitles

{16) Provisions
Non-current provisions
Graluily
Total non-current provislons
Currant provisions
Graluity
Compensated absences **
Provision for charge-backs*
Pravision for tax (net of advance taxes)

Total current provisions

** Compensated absences :The amount of the provision of Rs, 206 lakhs (315t March 2022 ~ Rs. 156 lakhs} is presented as cument, since the Company does nol have an

unconditional right to deter setiferment for any of these obligations.

Movement in Provislon for charge-backs
At the commencement of the year
Provision made during the year

Provision uhlised during the year

At the end of the year

B3 a3
394 485
30 20
17 256
524 624
454 238
454 238
78 199
206 156
976 744
1] 68
1,327 1,959
744 716
268 g9
a7 ;L
978 744

*Provislon for charge-backs: Charge-back costs are estimated on the basis of Company's past experience wilth merchanis. Provision is made for estimated liability in respect of

charge-back costs based on past irends and volume of \ransactions processed by the Company.




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
{formedy known as Ingenico ePayments indla Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)}
as al 31 March 2023
{Cumency: indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise staled)

{17) Cther llabilitles

Current ifabifities

Advanca from customers

Stalulory dues payable ;

-Provident fund

-Tax deducted at source

- Goods and seyvices tax

-Employee stale insurance corparation *

-Profession tax payable

-Onher payables {includes payable to merchanis lowards tax deducied at source)

Total current llabllitles
“ Reprasenls vahoe o353 than Rs. 1 kkh

As at Asal
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
152 154
17 16
kxr 222
302 549
0 1
1 1
4,307 1429
2l195 2|372




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
{formerly known as Ingenico ePaymenis India Privale Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued}
for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless othenwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
{18) Revenue from operations *
Sale of services 64,709 45,831
Break-up of revenue from services rendered;
Paymenl processing services 54,021 45,240
Risk management system income 284 364
Integration fees 234 72
Maintenance and other services 170 155
54,709 45,831
* Refer note no. 26 & 32 - Disclosure under Ind AS 115
{19} OCtherincome
Interest income on bank deposits ) 1,134 782
Sundry creditors batance written-back 13 1
Intevest on income-1ax refurd 141 117
Exvess provisions written back, 133 53
Nel {loss}gain en account of foreign exchange Auctuations 49 1
Profit on sale/discard of property, plant and equipment * 2 0
Other miscelaneous income | :x] 241
1,525 1,186
* Reprasents vale less than Rs. 1 lakh
{20) Employee benefits expenses
Salaries, wagas and bonus 6,693 4,836
Share based payment expenses {refer note no, 31 & 32) 48 -
Conlribulion to provident and other funds 93 96
Graluity 99 118
Compensated absances 66 64
Siaff welfare and other employee relaled costs 120 172
Less: Capitalisation for intangible assat under development (955) (205)
Total employse benefits expenses 8,803 5079
(21) Finance costs
Interest expense on lease liabilitias . 77 104
Interest axpense on delayed payment of slatutory dues 12 4

8% 108




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
{formerly known as Ingenico ePayments indla Privale Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated}

{22) Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipments
Depreciafion of Right-of-use assels (refer note no, 25)
Amorisatian of intangible assels

Total depraciation and amortisation expense

{23a) Operating expenses
Bank clearing charges
Software license charges
Commission
Server charges
Other operaling expenses

Total operating expenses

(23b) Other expenses
Legal and professional fees

Rent **

Contract manpower cost

Power and fuel

Repairs and maintenance - others

IT infrastruciure axpenses
Communication

Bank charges

Travelling and conveyance

Annual maintenance charges
Recruitment

Postage and courier

Printing and stationery

Adventising and marketing

Provision for chargeback
Management fees

Royalty fees

Bad debts

Payment to auditors (refer nole below)
Subscription fees

Piovision for doubtful deposits and other advances
Allowance for expecled credit loss on trade receivables *
Miscell S exp

Total other expenses
* Represent value kass than s, 1 lakh
* Includés keace rentals for shorl Lerm leases and feases of low value assels Tor the year,

Payment to audltors (excluding GST) :
For statutory audit -

For lax audit

For other services

QOut of pocket expenses

Total payment to auditors (excluding GST)

Year snded
31 March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

484 358
372 312
175 8,520
1031 9,197
41,138 33,323
397 a78
299 61
270 165
8 49
4209, 32076
190 174
103 99
491 509
55 a2
68 73
1,026 527
7 29
2 94
70 3
o6 80
16 9
4 3
11 6
109 79
268 99
2,329 3,450
320 246
39 1
29 20
5 13
40 -
47 0
182 112
5970 5701
22 20
] -
1 -
29 20_




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited

& ry known as | ico ePaymens India Private Limited)

Notes to the financlal statements (Continued)
lor the year ended 31 March 2023

{Cumancy; Indian Rupses in lakhs, unless othenvise staled)
{24) Amalgamation

Hote: - As per the NCLT merger order, wilh effect from Ihe Effective Date, the name of the Transferee Company shall be changed from "E-Bifling Sclutions Private Limited”
1o "Ingenico ePaymenls India Private Limied" in accordance wilh Seclion 12 of lhe Companies Acl, 2013 and 1he olher relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2043 as

ble. The Company was r d as Worldline aPayments India Private Limihed wilh effect from 20ih December, 2021.

app

Amalgamation of TechProtess Paymeni Services Private Limited with the Company

The shareholders of the Company approved the Scheme of Amalgamation (‘the Scheme’) between E-Billing Solutions Privale Limited {*the Company”) and
TechProcess Payment Services Privale Limiled {‘Teansferos Gompany™).

TechProcess Paymenl Services Privale Limiled is engaged in the busi of providing payment aggregalion services wherein i enables merchants to accept
ts through anfine payment gateways in parinership wilh thel acquiring banks. It also provides fecurring payment services Lo ils clients in the form of Elecironic

Clearing system (ECS), National aulomated clearing house (NACH), direct debit, e-mandate services and such ancillary aciivities to paymen! cervices. Among others, 1
acts as an intermediary \o facilitate delivery, review and payment of bills payable 1o any wility provider, service provider or the Kke, in respect of services/ facililies or

ulililies availed and 1o receive and send insinuctions andfor ¢ ications in respact of the same.
The Nalional Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT), Mumbai Bench on 8 Oclober 2018, approved the Scheme as par the provisions of Sections 230 and 232 of the
Companies Acl, 2013, In ¢ with the Sch Ihe Transf Comg is merged with the Company wilh an appointed dale of 1 April 2017. The Scheme has

become effeclive on 17 COctober 2018, being the date on which the order of the NCLT, Mumbai Bench has been filed wilh he Registrar of Companias, Mumbai by he
Gompany. The impact of amalgamation has been given i the financiel year 2017-2018 wilh effect from the appoinled date. Tha NCLT order override the requirements
under Ind A5 103, Business Combinalions and hence lhe Company has considered ihe dale of acquisition as 1 Aprt 2017, The Company has considerad the said
amalgamalion as a business acquisilion from the appointed date,

In accordance with the provisions of the af id Sch lhe Company disch d the purchase consideralion in N bar 2047 by issuing 7,286 fully paid up
equity shares of Rs.10 each againsl every 10,000 equity shares of the Transferor Company, Accordingly, for a tolal consideration of Rs.57,251 lakhs the Company has
allotled and issved 21,639,960 equily shares of Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs 254,56 per share to the shareholders of ihe Trans{eror Company.

The NCLT order overrida lhe requirements under Ind AS 103, Business Combinalions and hence the Amalgamation has been accounted for under the "Purchase
Melhod' as per AS-14 Accounling for Amalgamations as referred to in Ihe Scheme of Amalgamation approved by (he NCLT. Hed the Company followed lhe
requirements of Ind AS 103 Business Combinalions,

the excess of consideration oves assels and liabillias would be been debited Lo Relained ings (nel of detemed laxes) instead of Goodwill,

-All asseta and liabiMies including resevvas would have been iransferred af book values inslead of at their fair values;

-Equity shares Issued as parl of purchase consideration would have baen issuad al nominal value inslead of at fai value;

All assels and liabililes excluding reserves appearing in the books of Is of the Transd Company a3 a1 1 April 2047 have been incorporated at thei fak
valuas in the financial stal s of the Company

AN assels and liabjlitiss excluding reserves taken over on amalgamalion and equity shares to be issusd by the Company 1o the shareholders of TechProcess Payment
Services Privale Limited with effect from the appainled data are as under:

Pasticulars As al

1 April 2017,

ASBETS

{A) Hor-current askvls

(s} Pyoparty, plant and equipiment 503
{b) Other intangile assets ELh)
{c) Finoncial asaets

) Wwvestments 1
() Lonsrs 24
() Cther fnanclal assets 3
{d) Income tax augets {nel) (X1
(8} Other assels 2448
Total non-cusrend assets 5404
{B) Current atieis

{n) Financiol apaets
| wvesimanis 2902
i) Trade teceivables 1724
() Cach and cash equivalents 1307
() Bank balanies othar han () sbove 6,501
(v] Loans. 27
tvi) Obwr Boancinl sesety 329
(b) Other amsels 257
Totsd current aszats 13137

Tolsl sasals JAE24




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
Ay known a3 Ingenico ePayments India Private Limied)

Notes to the financlal statements (Continued)}
for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Cumrency; Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otharwise slated)
{24} Amatgamation {Continuead)

Amalgamation of TechProcess Payment Services Private Limited with the Company {Continusd)

[Particutars sl
1 Apeil 2017
1) Lisbilhies
{1 Norr-urrer llabllities
) Financial EabWiien
() Crther nandal Rabiities 49
b} Freasions. &3
i) Delamad lax Enbilties (net) Bl
{d} Othes labiites -
Total non-currant Rabiilles. 148
) Cume Nablities
{4} Financlal Fabiities
()} Trode paysbles
1. Duies of micio sndeiprises and emall enlerprises -
2. Duss of craditon oiher than mlcro antarprioes i small enlrprises 2152
{5} Other fnanciph Babiites L)
b} Provizlons g
{c) Othar kabiities 220
() Current tax Rubilites [nal) 108
Total current liahiFties —
Tolal llablliies 3403
— ]
Rl arseis aken over 16,018
e
Purchace conyideration 57.251
(Goodwill 4229

Goodwill arising on accoun! of Ihe amalgamation has been amortised over period of five years as per AS-14, Accounting for Amalgamations. Amortisalion charge on

Goodwill in current yaar is Nil (3t March 2022: Rs 8,450 lakhs} and Ihe balancs of Goodwill as on 31 March 2023 is NI (31 March 2022: Nil).

{25) Leases

The Gompany has recognised Rs. 103 Lakhs {315l March 2022, Rs, 99 Lakhs) as renl expenses during the year which perlains 1o shorl-term leasas / fow value assels (Refer

Nole 23b)

‘The malurily analysis of teaze liabililies ars dischosed in nole 37(L)
BOU Assats

ROU Asset ns on 1 Aprid 2021

| Add: Addithon taring the: year
Dapreciation

ROU Arsat a3 on 31 March 2022

ROU Axset av on 1 Aprll 2022

141

Add: Addicn during the year 06
FDarpre clation are
IIIOI.IMM ason 11 March 2023 LEE]
Leaga Liabilities
F Amound
Lewas Iability a3 on § April 2021 1,249
Add: Addition during the yas .
Financa cosl 0
Leass payments 403
Leasw Ilabllity a3 on 31 March 2032 450
e —
(Crvar 339
Hom-currant &1
#50
Lease lnbdlity &5 on 1 Aprfl 2032 o
Add: Addition during the year Fa
Financa coal w
Leare paymants a1y
Laase Nabllity as on 31 March 2023 (317

‘Currant L)
Hon-currend kL
24
D ———
ou at a
Particulan Amount

Depeciation charged diing the year on RCU easels
Finance cost on the leage kabilty
Toisd




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
(formerty known as ingenico ePayments India Privale Limited}

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2623

{Curency: Inckan Rupees in lakhs, unless otharwise slated)
{26) Disclosure under ind AS 115, Revenue from Coniracts with Customers

The Company is engaged in the busi of providing pay L processing services.
Reconcliiation of revenua as per Ind AS 116
Parliculars Yaar andad Yoear#

3 March 2023 1 March 2022
Sale of 24rvices 84,709 4583
Tolal 54,709 45851
The Company’s revenus is primarily from providing paymenl p ing services, All the 1& derived primarily from the cuest s in India.

The bifing 1o customers follow diffarenl schedules based upon the naturs and type of services being transierred, The billing is generally made on a monthly basis and
payable within conlraclually agreed credit pariod.

Thers is no ¢ tobe gnised jn future retated to pedormance obligations thal are tisfied {or partially sabisfied) as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,
Applying the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of Ind AS 115, tha Company does not adjust the promised amount of consideralion for the efiects of a significant financing
component if al contract inception il is expacied thal the period between when 1he entily transfers a promised service o a cusiomer and when the cuslomer pays for thal
sarvice will be one year or less.

The Company applies practical expedient in paragraph 121 of Ind AS 115 and does nol disclose inf tion aboul ining perii obligations that have originat
axpectad duralion of one yaar oF kess.

Sinca the Company's revenue is primarily from providing payment processing services and such business of providing payment processing services constilwte a single
busi i, no de-segregalion of is baing done by the company. {Refer note 33)

{27) Contingent Liabllities and Commltments

{a)

1

Contingencies
Claims against the Com nol acknow as debts in respect of income-lax demand and payment to Income Tax Aulhorily are as balow.
As at Asg at
Assosament Year 3 March2023 31 March 2022
200:3-2004 1€ 16
2004-2005 0 20
2005-2006 1" "
2005-2007 -] 5
2007-2008 146 148
2008-2009 9 9
2017-2018 1,219 1,219
2018-2019 3 2
Aggregale Incoms Tax demand 1,429 1,428
Paymeni madea lo lncome Tax Authanty
agalnst A.Y, 2017-2048 1.21% 1.219
Kot aggregale Income Tax d d* 210 210
“Management considers [hese claimsidemands are nol tenable agains! the Company, and therefora no provision for these conlingency has been eslablished,
The income tax authvilias have disallowed certain exp aggregaling Rs.179 takhs (31 March 2022, Rs. 179 lakhs} during the the course of assessment proceedings for
years lrom t year 2003-04 Lo assessmenl yaar 2007-08. The Company is contesting agains! (hese disallowances at various levels with the income-fax
authorities. Managemant believas thal lhe outstanding malters are not tenable against Ihe Company, and therefors no provision for thase conli y has been blished
The Company had received notics under Section 148 of Lhe | {ax Acd, 1961 along with nolice issued under seclion 142(1} of Ihe Acl for the reason that the Company

racaived large amounl of money by way of share applicalion money/share capilal of Rs. 1,505 lakhs with high share premium. The Company filed a wril pelition in the
Bombay High Court, challenging the Notice. Tha Hon'ble Bombay High Court passed an order daled & December 2016 granling inlarkm relief to the reassessmenl
procaadings infialed under Section 147 of the Aclin respecl of TechProcess for financial year 2008-09, Order Giving affect Lo the High Gourt order is nol yel received by the
Company. Further, no demand has been receivad so far from the i fax department. Tha Company is confident of chialning favorable verdicl in this matter®,

Perfarmance guarantees issued by bank and oulstanding as on 31 March 2023 Rs. 5,678 Lakhs (31 March 2022: Rs. 5,616 lakhs).

5 In February 2018, 1he Supreme Couwrt of India in ils judgement clarified the applicability of allowances thal should ba considered to measue obligations under Employees

Providenl Fund Adt, 1952. Howaver, there are numsrowss inlerpretalive aspects relaled 1o the judgemenl, including the effectiva date of applicalion. In view of the sbove, the
Company has assessed the liabilily which is nol significanl. The Company will conlinue to assess any fuiher dovalopments in this malter for tha implications on financhal
slatements, if any.

In AprildMay 2048, the Company found out Lhal ihers was a shorifall in selilemenl funds due from waltet company, which was inlegraled as a payment oplicn for the
Company's h Invasligations ked 1hat for many transactions i Apit-Way 2048, the Company had ived * * confirmation and passad il on o merchanls
for onward delivery of goods end services. The wallel company has claimed to have passed on ‘falled” siatus lo Ihe Company, due lo which no moneys wera recelived but
disbursemsnls were mads to hants by the Company. The Company believes prima facke thal the slatus of iransactions have been lampered in iransil. The Company
conducted a forensic study and has alrsady reported the matier 16 taw enforcemenl authorities. The matier is i prog with law enti L avlhorilies. The Company had
mads closing provision of Rs 271 lakhs for he year ended 31 March 2023 (Rs.271 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2022}.

During 1he year ended 31 March 2048, ona of the employses of the Company misapproprialed funds aggregaling to Rs 9 Jakhs into his awn personal bank account. The
voncerned employes admitied the Acl. The Company filed police compliant in January 2019 end filed First Information Report in March 2019. The maiter is in progress with
law enforcemerd authorilies.




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
{farmedy kacwn as ingenico ePaymans India Frivals Limited)

Notes to the financlal statements (Continued)
for the year endad 31 March 2023

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless othenwise staled)

{27) Contingent Liabllitles and Commitments (Continued)

8 The Company has received order dalsd 14 Seplember 2021 for payrnent of stamp duly of Rs, 402 lakhs and subsequently, nolice of demand daled 16 March 2022 for
paymenl of stamp duty of Rs.402 lakhs and penalty of Rs.336 Jakhs from Collector of Stamps, Enforcement | — Mumbai in connection with the scheme of amalgamation
batween the Company and TachProcess Payment Services Privale Limited, approved by the NCLT, Mumbai Banch on 8 October 2018,

The Company has filed an appeal against the said order with the Chief Contralling Revenue Aulhority, Pune. Based on legal opinion, the Company does nol foreses any
outflow in this regard.

9 The Gompany had received an order dated 27 January 2022 from Assessment Officer against Professional Tax A | for the ysar 2017-20148 wilh a demand of Rs. 17
lakhs. The Company has deposiled Rs. 4 Lakhs i.9., 25% of tolal demand under protest and had filed an appeal challenging such denand. The Assessment Order has been
set aside in our favour. However, the cass has been remanded back fo the Assassing Authority for making fresh assessment,

{b} Capltal commitments
Eslimaled amount of conlract remaining 1o be execuled on caphal account and not provided for {net of advances) as on 31 March 2023 is Nil {31 March 2022; Nil)

{28} Relationshlp with struck-off companles

The lollowing lable depicts the detalls of balances culstanding in raspecl of iransactions undertaken with a pany struck-off undar seclicn 248 of the Companios Act,
2013,
Name of irich off company Haturs of Transactiony with Rulationthlp with the siruck-off company, Al As o]
siruch-off i any 3 March 2023 M March 2022
Panoramic Holdays L * Recehabis Customer '] |
Pacito Prime Foods Privale Umiied * Ruceivable Customan 0 [

* Reotaunl vahie st than RE. 1 lakh

{29) Earnings per share

Partlculars Yaar unded
1 March 2023
ProFLoss attrtriAable to the aquity holders of the Company (Amount i Lakhs} %
d svwraga number of squity sharey 23837413
Eamings par share {bask: end dluted) b ¥4 ]
Face value per equity share {Rs.) 10

{30) Dues to Micro and Smail Enterprises

Under the Micro, Small and Medlum Enlerprisas Development Acl, 2006, (MSMED), cerain disclosures are required 1o be made refating 1o dues to Micro and Small
Enterprises, On Ihe basis of the information and records available wilh the Company, ihe following disclosures are made for the amounts due 1o the Micro and Smalk

Enlevprises.

Particulars 31 March 2023 H March 2022
{a) tha principal amounl and the inlerast dua threon (10 be shovwn separpiely] temalning unpakd to any swppler al the end n 204
of vach Recouning yead,

(b the mmoun of arerasl pakd by the buyer ko lerme of section 16 of the Micro, Smal snd Medium Emlampiisas. - -
(Davelapmant Act, 2005, along with ke amatnt of the paymant made to the sppisr bayond e appoinied day during

«ach accouniing year,

Lo} Ue amount of interns die ael payable for the parlod of delay In making payment (which have been pald but beyond A -
e sppointad day during the year) but whhoul dding Whe inlarest speciied under e Micr, Small and Madum

Enterprises Development Acl, 2006;

(1) the amount of Inleresl sccrued ond remaining unpaid st i end of each sccounting yrar; and .

(&) e amount of frther inlerest ramainkiy dus and payabis even In the succasding yaars, untd cuch date when the
inlerest dues above are athually pakd to the smell enterprise, for the puposs of of a deduckh y . ]
undar ssction 23 of the Micro, Smal and Madum Enlarprises Development Acl, 2006

{31) Related party transactions
(a) Related partles

St,  Nama of the party Mahire of refailonship

No

+ Werlkdine 3.4 Utimate: holding company

2 Workling s-Commarcs Sohstions BVWSRL (erst while inganico e-Commarce Solubons BVBA/SPRL) Helding company

3 Wordine K55A SA (formerly known as Ingonica 5.A} Inlemmedinle Holding compamy
4 Retsd Intematonsl Holding SAS Itrmedinle Hobding company

& Globat Cofiect Senicns BV, Felow sobshiary

6 Ingenice inlemakionsl india Privale Limied (upto 30 September 2022) Fetorn subsidiury

¥ MALPoansl Private Limked Fator wobskiinry

& Wondine Global Services Private Limited Feflow pubgldiary

¢ Workdine ndka Privale Limilnd Fellow subsidiary

10 Workiine Financlal Sobutioms HVISA . Fellow robshiiary

¥ M. Deepek Chandnanl Diraclor

b} Key managerial psrsonnel

Sr.  Pankulars Naturs of refailonthip

No
1 it Ramash Morasimhon Marcaging Direcles ard CEC
2 k. Remaluishnoan Famanrthy Diraclor
3 Ms, Echa Mebin (rashgnad w.a . 2 June 2022} Company Sscraiary

M. Hishal Shah {appointad w.ed. 29 June 2022) Company Secrelary

-
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{formenty known as Ingenico ePaymeonts India Frivate Limited)
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless olherwisa stated}
{31) Related party transactions (Continued)

[c} Detalls of transactions with related partias for the year ended 31 March 2023

Sr.
Ho

&

"

12

Hature of Transaction

Transactions

Managarial ramunsration
Hr. Ramesh Haraskmhan
Hr. Ramuluishnan Rsmanvthy

Lol pany L4

s, Kushal Shah
ha. Exha Mehin

Rani, Repair and maintanance

Inpenico intamational India Private Limited
Woddine India Privale Umtied

M.ALL Pesnel Privile Limiled

Wortdine Global Sefvices Private Limied

W infrasirschi aipendes
Workdine Global Servicas Private Limited

Managemont fras

Relud intamaonal Hoking S.A5
Woridine 5.4,

Workine Financlel Schiion N/SA

Siatf waitat and oihar employes refaled cotls
Limited

Wondine lnda Private
Worldine Global Services Privale Limitad

Royalty fess
Viordine S.A

R from icas {Rlvk

Worldine a-Commarce Schrilone BYISRL {erst while Ingenico e-
BYBAISPRL)

Commece Solutions

Uhtimats Holding

Company

from kas {Paymant
Global Collecl Services BV,
M .R.L Poaned Privale Limied
Worldine India Privala Limited

Relmburysmant of deputalion charges

Wordiing IGSA SA [formery knowh ws ngenko 5.8)
Ralmbursemant of Legal and profassional lees

Woridine S.A

Shara basad payment supense
Workdine 5.4,
Relall nternaonal Holding 5.4 &

Closing halances
Trade receivables

Commerce Soiutions.

Workiing s-Commerce Solutions BYISRI. {arsl while Ingenico e-
BVEASPAL)

Workdine K3SA SA (lrmary known as ingenico SA)

Globol Colect Sardoes BV,
M.RL Posnal Privats Umited
Worldiine India Privete Limited

Cther recelvabie
Ingenico Intemational Indka Private Limited

Sacurity deposh receivabie
‘Workiine India Private Umbted

Trade payables

Woikiine Financial Selution NVISA
Retall Imlemabional Holding 5.A.5
Werkline S.A

Workiine Global Services Privale Umited
MR Posnat Frivate Umiied

Holiing Company  Intarmadists Holding

Company

218

Fellow Subaldiary  Hey Msnagement

16
s
21
13

283

420

T

Erd

Personnsi

51
196

Tolal

25
55

15

2
15

253

2387
12
420

-

25

Tie
o7
ErL)

65
216

22

259

137

0

4
151

2
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
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{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, untess otherwise slated)

{c) Detalls of tions with related partles for the year ended 31 March 2022
Br.  Naslure of Franzaciion Vitimate Holding Helding Company  Irlsymadlata Holding Fellow Subsidl Koy M Tols
Ho Company Company Parsonnal

A Tranzactiona
1 Mansgerial famuneration

r. Ramesh Herssimhan - - - - 280 290

. Ramaksishnan Ramanwrthy - - - - 27 2
2 0 & Secrelary

M5, Esha Mehin - - - - 14 14
3 Rent, Repalr and malnienance

Ingenico intemationst India Privalo Limtted - - - 36 - 3

Wordlne lvdln Privale Limied - - - 263 - 263

HR.L Posnal Privats Limited - - - n - L)

‘Worldine Global Serdces Privaie Limited - - - 7 - 7
4 IT Infrasiruchire axpansas

Wording Gioha Services Private Umited - - - L2 - 59
B Management Tess

Relel internalional Holding 5.4.5 - - EE L - - 3450
% St walfare snd other employsda rolaled costs

Relad Internuiicnal Holding 5.A S - - 1] - - "
7  Royalyiess

Wondiine K554 SA [formerly ks s ingenico S.A) - - 167 - - 167

Workiine S.A, 7% - - - - Fi
8 Revenue from servicas (Risk kces}

‘Worldine o-Commerce Schllont BWSRL (2] whila ingenloo - ; 250 N R %0

Comméms Soions BVBASPRL} N
9 Revenus from nervicas (Payment Osteway iranssctlon process)

Globsl Collacl Senvices BY. - - - 03 - 305

Wontdine India Privale Limind - - - L - 0
16 Redmbursemend of deputation charges

Workdine IGSA SA (formerty known ug ingenlco SA) - - 21 - - b4
L) i ol exp L

ingenioe niemational ind Privala Limited - - - 4 - 4

B Closing balances
1 Trade receivables

Worldine e-Commasca Solutions BVISRL {ersA while Ingenkca e- . 2 ; . 3 2
Commarca Solutors BYBA/SPRL)
Woridina [GEA SA {fermerly knawn s ingenico S.A) - - 5 . . 'y
Ingenico intemational india Privata Limited - . - 4 . N
Global Collect Services BV, - ] ]
Workdine incka Private Limited . . . 3 : o
2 Sscurity deposit recabvable
Worksina lndia Private Limited - - - 23 - 123
3 Trade payabley
Workiine GIA SA iformarly knovn as npanico $.A) . - 1218 - - 1212
Relnd iemational Holding 5. A5 - - 4560 . . 4590
Ingnico Intermational Inda Privale Limited - - - F] . 4
Worldéne India Privale Limited - - - 109 - e
Warkdine S.A, T2 - - - - 72
Warkline Global Serdces Private Limied - - - F7) . a2
ML Posnat Privote Limited - - . P . &

{32) Share-based payments
{a} Longsterm Incentlva plan (Phantom shares plan)

During lhe year ended 31 March 2048, the Company launched a Long-Term Incenlive Plan (LT1) for the benefil of kay employees, subject to the salisfaction of cerlain
perk e and service consideralions:

[Athlayemani of perfonmanca Aranied Phaniom Evaluation dale Date of paymant upon

conditions shares DrEance

EBS integration rondmap A% of the condithonal H Macch 2049 3o Apell 2019
awatd

HPCURBI Licerws 5% of the condionst 3 March 2019 30 Apil 2018
awad

Ovbonrding Top BiMlen 5% of the condalonal 31 March 2019 F0 Apek 2018
wwad

Finanidal isrgats 2019-2020 AT% of the condhlonal A Dwcambar 2020 3 March 2021
wwed

* Revenus largus yesr 2021 13% of the candionsl 34 Decamber 2021 31 Mharch 2022
award

Award means conditional award of Ingenico Phanlom shares to The benefi of such employse, subject to Ihe vesling in accordance willt the plan. Ingenico Phanlom shares
means a unil represanling e right 10 racejve a cash amount based on Ingenico share price.

* As at 31 March 2022, Ihe Company had paid 87% of the rewards to Ihe employees for pariially achieving the largel and for the balance 13% an opporiunity of revised largel
was given to {he same set of emplkiyess lor year 2021 which was again pariially achleved and afler discussion wilh Worldline Group, it has now been deckled vl make any
turiher payment. Thus, 1he balance provision as on 21 March 2022 of Rs. 83 lakhs has been wrilten back during the year ended 31 March 2023,

{b) Free share plan

During the year, Worldline SA {i.e, ulimate holding company} issued free stock options amounting 10 Rs. 265 lakhs 1o Ihe eligible employees of the Company. Since Ihe
ompany dogs nol have an obligation to sellls the fransaclion wilh ils employees, he Company has recognised lhis expense in lis Slatement of profit and kss with the

dorvesponding increase in equily as a deemsd conlribulion from parent company in accordance wilh Indian Accourting Standard {Ind AS) 402 on share based paymenls




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
{formenly known as ingenico ePayments intia Privale Limited)

Notes to the financlal statements {(Continued)
for the yesr ended 31 March 2023

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise slated)
{33) Segmaent reporting

Opevaling segments are defined as componenls of an enterprise for which discrete Dnancial inf ion is available thal s evalualed regulerly by the chief oparaling
dacision meaker for ing the Company's perf and allocaling the resources based on an analysis of varicus perf indicalors by business sagmemts and
geographic segmants,

The Company is mainly engaged in Ihe business of providing payment processing services which conslilule a single business segment. These aclivilies are conducted only
i1 ona geagraphic segment viz India. Therefare, the disclosure requiremants of Ind AS 108 "Segment Reporling” are not applicable.

Information about major customars

The Company has 2 cuslomer {p year: 1
lakhs). These r are atinibuted to the |

(34) Employee benefits
{a) Deflned contribution plan
T Company has a defined conlribulion plan in respect of p

1 fund, Gontsibull

} conlributing move than 10% of the fotal revenus and in aggregate of Rs. 13,185 lakhs {31 March 2022: R3.6,994
1 procassing services which constilute a single busingss segment.

are made 10 providen! fund in India for employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary

as per regulations. The contribulions are made to tepistered provident fund administared by the Governmenl of India. The obligation of tha Company is limiled Lo the amount

contribited and it has no further fual nov any ¢ tive obligation.
Partlculars 35 March 3023 31 March 2022
Emphoyze contribiion Lo provident iumd L] o5

in'Cor n o p

{b) Compensated absences

idant and other funds' under employea benafils expense (Refer Nole 20)

The Company accrues for unulilisad $eave, a defined benefit plan based on (he available Jeave balance standing to the credit of the employees al year-end. The value of
such leave balance eligibte for carry forward, Is determined by actuarial valuation a8 al Ihe Balance sheel and is charged 1o the Statemen! of profil and loss in the period

determined,
Acluarial assumptions;
Particutars As ol Aa al
1 March 2023 3 March 2022
(Dizcound rate TA4% G.08%
Futre salary increases " "%
Ioriakity rate: AL (204 2-14) Ultimute TALM {2012-14) Uimata
Atmdon Rale 1% 2%
Heimal retrement age 60 years 54 years

The eslimates of future salary increases considered in the ectuarial valuation takes into account faclors like inflation, seniofily, promotions and olher relevant factors.

{c} Defined beneflt plans
Gratuity:

The Company provides for graluity for employees in India as per the Payment of Graluily Acl, 1572. Employees who are in i

service for a pericd of 5 years are

sligible for graluily. The amounl of graluily payable on retirementtarminalion is the employees last drawn basic salary per monih computed proporiionately for 15 days salary

muhiplied for the number of years of service. The graluily plan is a funded plan and Ihe Company makes contribution 1o d funds in ndla,
Parliculars Gratulty
As ot Ay al
4 March 2023 31 March 2022
[{DNsconnnd rale T.04% 605%
Funwre salary Incroosan 4 b
Expecied retum on plan assels $.00% 6.00%
Atiiion rate 17% 2%
Mortolity Rate TALM {2042-14) Ukimate LALM {2012-14) Unimete
Notes:
1. Discounl rale; The discoun dale is based on the prevailing marked yields of Indian government securiiies for the eslimated term of the obligations.
2. Salary jort raler The eslimates of fulure salary increases considered takes inte accoun the inflation, ty, p lon and other red A faclors.
3. Assumptions regarding future mortality ecpanence are set in accord with Iha slalistics publishsd by the Lite Insurance Corporation of India.
Tha amounts recognised In the batance shest and movements in the net defined benefit bilgation (O] ovar the year are as follows :
[Ghangs i the present value of obllgation Aswl Azl
1 March 2023 31 March 2022
Present valua of obbgation at the begining of the year L7 462
Inlerest cost B ] 27
Past service cost )] -
(Cument servics cosl 7 98
Berthfita pald {36} 47
Remeaxirnmens dus fo
Ackanal {gain) ereing from change in fnancal sesumplions {25} [1})
| Achranal foas arising on accound of ssperience changes L] "
(Actrorial foasipaind wising on acccunt of demagraphical assumptions 23 %
Present value of abligation st the end of the yeor - [53 629
— ]
The amounts recognised in the balance sheel and movements In the falr value of plan asssts over the year are as follows :
1Changs In the falr vaks: of plan ascats Axmi As
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Falr vahie of plary aassls al the beginning of tha year 00 116
Inlares1 on plan assely L] T
Achuarial pains 1 1
Contribubons made by the Company n 2
Benafits paid {36} 7
Falr valuo of pfan axsels at the end of the year 102 100
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{Cumency: Idian Rupees in lakhs, unless oltherwise stated}

{34) Employee beneflts {Continued}

[Recancillation of prasent vatus of defined baniefit obligation and the fair valu of assats Asat As ot

3 Maych 2423 34 March 2002
Preseni vale of funded oblgation ai the end of he year 15 B8
Fuir vadus of plan ssaets o9 a1 the &nd ol the pariod ez (100H
Dalicit of funded plan 533 429
A ] lsad in the of profit and loas Yaar anded Year

31 March 2023 31 Murch 2022
(Cumend servica cosl 7T %
[Past sanvies cosl L -
Interasl cosl 25 20
Tolal exp gnized in the of profit and foss 89 116
A t pnlsed ko olher prehantive inooms Yoar snded Ve ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2023
Remeasuramaents duing the year due bo
Changas kn financial assumplions |28y (n
Changes In demopraphic assumpiions 23 %
E:periance ndusiments L1 11
Achual reium on plan aasels los interaal on plan assely {n {1
A gnlsed [n ether henaive Income during tha year 18 {10}

{d) Sensitivity of the defined benefit obllgation to ch in walghted principal i ls:

Impact on defined benedit abligation wnd of the parlod

L Parlkculary

No
1. Dlecoumt rste +100 basis poits.
2. Dicount rata -100 basis points
2 Salwry Increase Rote +1%
4. Salary ncreans Rate -1%
£, Attrition Raly +1%
3, Atiribon Rals 1%

Yaar ended Tam endi
31 March 2023 3 March 2022,
L) 500
L1 549
L1 545
0T 511
¥ G4
3 532

“The above sensilivily analysis are based on a change in an assumplion while holding all other assumptions constant. In praclice it is unlikely to cceur, and changes in some

of the assumplions may be correlaled. The methods and lypes of assumplion used in praparing the sensilivity analysis did nol ch compared to previous period.
{e} Expacted future bunefit paymenis
IE:pocud cash flows for following year Year snded Year ended
31 March 202} 31 March 2022
Tear 1 ] M
Yeoar2 .14 ki)
Youf 3 -3 75
Year 4 L] 57
Vear & B 47
Mot 5 years e 124
{35) Income tax expense
{a) | tax exp in the t of profil and loss comprises!
Particulars Year snded Year anded|
3 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current ax
Camveank tax - -
Tolad currant tax sxpense - N
Deferred tax
Deared lax Tk (AT
Tols deferred tax {benefliliaxpanse T8 {1A71)
InComa 1ax sXpan3e o8 {1.871))
{b} OCIsection deferred tax related to ltems recognised In OCI during the period:
Parliculare Yaar anded Year ended
11 March 2023 M March 202
Hed foss (G aln} on rameasrement of dafined banel plans 9 (3)]
{t) Reconclilatlon of tax expense and the accounting proflt compuled by applying Income tax rate!
Particulars Yauy eoded Year ended
# March 2017 M March 2022
Prof {Loss) befors 1ux 1432 {T.045)
T rate ol 25, 068% (2021-22: 25.168%) FLALL] 25 166%
Compuied 1oy expensa J69 [y Arrri)
Delamed lax due lo bue Up ol logsas 238 {2291
EHect of exp thal s nol deductible io g Leable: profil L -
Cihers [ 13 [E))
Incoms tax axpance Tob {1,871}
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(Currency: Indlan Rupess in lakhs, unless otherwise slated)
{36} Fair value measurement

The lollowing teble shows the carrying amounts and fair vatues of financial assels and financial liablifties, Including their levels in the falr value hiararchy. I does nol include
fair value Iformation for financia) assets and financial liabiliies if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximalion of far value those includes cash and cash equivalens,

olher bank bal , tradda receivables and irade payables.
{a) Fi 1al Inak ts by category
31 March 2022 Carrying amoumt Falr valia
Fale vahoe through prafit Amoutived coat Level 1 Lavel2 Level 3
of lose
Flnancial assHis
Hon-currend
irwwsiment in equity shares - - - - .
Bank doposiic (B0 againtl pariammunce guaranies) - 4
Securily deposis - 284 - - .
Curram .
Trade recalvablas - 8169 - - -
Securily duposis - 5 - - -
Cwsh and cash equivalents - 24,320 . . .
Othar pank batances - - - B -
Irberesl accried but ol due on fored depostts with bank - 135 . . .
Others - recehvables - 70 B - .
Total financisl sssels - 3T - . -
Finanelal Sabilies
Non-currend
Loaes Eabiites - n - - -
Current
Merchand daposit - a3 - - -
Trade payables - 086 - - -
Employes beneis payable - 394 - - -
|Creditone for caplial experaiiire - 17 - - -
Book overdrall - EL] - . -
Lense Gubilthen - 4 - - -
Tolal financlal Sabililles - 10,218 - - -
————— — —
M Muwrch 2012 Carrying smount Falr vaho
Falr vakse though profit Amyortised cost Lovel 1 Leei2 Lovad 3|
Flnancial ascels
Hon-currend
[Ivvesiment in aquity shares - 1 - ] -
Sacunly deposils - 54 - . -
indarast 3ccrusd bul nol dus on fied deposity with bank - - - - .
Fixad deposity with bank {nchuding acsety onlen} - - - - -
Trada racehisbles ' - 6854 - - .
(Secuity depocits - 2 - . -
(Cash and cash aquivalents - 29,706 - - -
(Cher bani batsnoss - 35 . . .
inderast nocruad but not due on fved daposits with bank - L] - - -
(Olvers - recabvables - T - - -
Tolal financlal assely - IT,106 - 1 -
Financiaf Pabiities
Hon-currant
Leass fabiiizn - &1 - - -
Meschant deposit - F1) - . -
Trade payables - 3,72 - - -
Employss benekis puyabls - 455 - . -
Book overdrafl - k2] . - .
Creditors lor capital expendiiure - 256 - - -
Lease kablity - e - - -
Tolal Anancial Nabliies - 15,457 - .

Note: Carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances, frade recsivables, unblifed receivables and trade payables as at 31 March 2023, 21 March 2022
approximale he fair value, Diff baly carrying 15 and fair values of bank deposits, olher financlal assels and othes i ial liabilities subsequenily d
at amortised cosl is not signilicant ky aach of the periods presented.
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{36) Falr value measurement {Continued)

b} Fair value hierarchy
The fair value hisrarchy is based on inpuls lo valuation lechniquss that are used to measive falr value thal are either observable or unpbservable and consisls of the
following three levels:
Level 1 — Inputs are quoted prices {unadjusled) in aclive markels for idenlical assets or liabililies.
Lavel 2 — Inputs are other lhan quoted prices included wilhin Lavel 1 thal are observable for the assel or Jiahility, eilher directly {.¢. as pricas) or indirectly {i.e. derived from
prices).
Level 3 — Inpuls are not based on observable markel data (unchservable inpuls). Fair vakies are determined in who'a or in part using a valuation model based on
assumplions that are neither supparted by pricas from observable current marked transactions in ihe same instrument nor are they based on available market dala.

The following lable summarises financial assets and liabililies measured at fair value on a recurring basis and financial assets ihat are nol measured at fair valug on a
recurring basis {bul fair value disclosure are required):

Financlal assots maarured al {she value st 31 March 2023 Laval 1 Lavel 2 Laved 3 Total

Investmend In equity sharet ol Saraswal Co-Operative Bank . - - .

Financlal asseis measured at falr value 21 31 March 2022 Lavel 1 Leysl 2 Levael 3 Totsl|
Irvaiment i squity chares of Sarnswat Co-Oparsitve Bank - 1 - 1
{c} Valuation tachni used to determine falr value

Specific valuation lschniques used 1o value financial inslruments include:
- the use of quoted market prices or mutual fund houses quotes {NAV) lor such instruments. This is included in Level 2.

- the fakr value of the remaining financial instrumenis is delermined using discounted cash flow analysis for which Lhird party valuer is appointed. This is included in Level 3.
The Company did nol use the services of third party valuer as at 31 March 2023, 31 March 2022 for any of he financial insiruments as it were nol applicable during these

years,

{d} Falr value of financial assets and lisbilities measured at amortised cost

Camying amounis of cash and cash equivalents, bank bal irade ivables, unbillad ivables and trade payables as at 21 March 2023, 34 March 2022
approximale the fair value. Difference between camying amounls and fair values of bank deposils, alher financlal assats and olher financial lisbilities subsequently measured
at amortised cost is not significant in each of the periods presented. Thay are classified a5 level 3 fair vafuas in [he (air valus hisrarchy due (o the inclusion of unchservable
inputs, inchuding counler pary credit risk.

{37) Financial risk management framework
The Company’s Board of Directors hes overall responsibilily for the eslablishmenl and aversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Board is responsible for
daveloping and moniloring the Company's risk management policies. The Board holds regular meelings on its activities.

The Company’s risk management poticies are established 1o idenlfy and analyss the risks faced by the Gompany, to sel appropriate risk limils and controls and to monilor

risks and adherence 1o limits. Risk management policies and syst are reviewed larly 1o reflect changes in markel conditions and Ihe Company's aclivities. The
Company, through its training and manag % standards and p dures, aims to maintain a disciplined and consinuctive control environment in which all employees
undersiand their roles and obligations.

The Board oversess how managemsnt monitors compliance with the Company’s risk li] | policies and proced and revi the adequacy of the risk
manag f rk in relation 1o the risks faced by the Company. The Board Is assisted in #s role by infemal audit team from Worldline Group {formarly known as
Ingenico Group). Intemal audit undertakes both reguler and adhoc rewvi of risk t controls and procedures, the results of which are reparted to the Board of

Woridline Group {formerly known as Ingenico Group).
This nole explains the sources of risk which he enlity is exposed 1o and how Lhe enlily manages the risk.

Risk Enposure srising from Maasuremani Managemaend of risk

[Cradi risk Cath and cash squivalents, trade recslvables, Ageing anatysis Divarsification of bank deposity, credit Brite and reguiar monitonng.
fnancial sasels messured ai amoriised cosl Credit retingy

Wi ity risk Trade puyables and othar kabilies Rroling coah Mow forecasts Avalublity of purphii cash, iad credit Bne snd i fing faclitias

(Markal fiak - forahgn  Recognised Fnancial assels and Babilies pot Cush fow foracasling Regular moni o haep the nel exp atan spladuhs Jevel.

axchange danominated in Ingian rupes NR) Sansithity anakysie

Price ek Invasiment o mutual funds. Credil rafings Portlolic Al i - itork

a}. Credil risk

Creadit risk is The risk of financial loss Lo 1he Company i a customer or counlerparty to a financial instirument fails lo meet its coniraciual obligations, and arises principally
from the Company's recelvables from cuslomers.

Tracks and other receivables

Tha Gompany's exposure Lo credil fisk is influenced mainly by the Individual characteristics of each customer. Howeaver, g W also iders the faclors that may
influencs he credit risk of ils customer base, including the defaull risk of the indusiry and couniry in which customers oparate.

A default on a financial assel is when the counlerparly fails 1o make confractual payments when they fall dus. This definilion of defaull is determined by considaring (he
business envirenment in which Company aperates and olher macro-economic factrs.

Credit qualily of a cuslomer is assessed based on s credil worthiness and hislorical doalings with ihe Company, markel inlelligence and goodwill. Ouistanding cuslomer

Larl

are "
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{37) Financial risk management framework {Conilntied)
a). Cradlt risk {Continued)

The Company has blishad an al for impai L lhat represants its expecied credit losses in ragpeact of trade and olper recaivables. The management uses a

simpified approach for the purpose of compulalion of expecled credit loss lor trade receivables and 12-monlh expected credit loss for other

analysis s performed a aach reporling dale on an individual basis for major parties. In addition, a large nUMber of minor eceivables are combined inio homoganous
calegenes and assessed for impaiment colleclively. Tha calculation is based on hislorical data of aclual lpsses, ‘The Company evaluales the concenliration of risk wilh

rospect lo Irade receivables as low.

Summary of the Company’s exposurs to credil risk by age of the culstanding from various customers is as follows:

Cutstanding for following periods Trom due date of paywan A1 March 2023 38 March 20221

Lerss than & monthy 817 5038

6 montng. - 1 year 13 12

1 -2 yaar L] L
2 -3 year 2 -
More than 3 yasn - -

3,18 6064

— e —

Reconcillation in the allowancs for impairmend in respect of irade receivables during the year was as follows.

31 March 2023 3 Merch 2022

Enianca 31 the beghuing of e yoar 208 6
Provision {net) during the year a7 s
288 208

Ealance st the end of tha year

Cash and cazh equlvalents

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and olher deposits with banks is lmited a3 Iha Company generally invest in deposis with banks with high credit ratings 2ssigned by
external credil raling agencies, accordingly the Comparny considers thal ihe related credii risk is low. bnpakment on lhese ilems are measured on (ha 12-month expected
cradi\ foss basis,

b}, Liguidity risk

Liquidily risk is Ihe risk that the Company will encounler difficully in meeting ihe cbligalions associated with ils financial fiabilites thal are seitled by delivering cash of
anolher financial asset. The Company's approach lo ing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity Yo meel ils Kabifities when they are
due, under both nosmal and stressed condilions, without incurring unacceplable losses or risking damage to tha Company's repufalion.

The Company's treasury mainlains Rexibility in funding by maintaining Nquidily through invesiments in liquid funds and other commitled credit linos. Manageman monitors
roMing foracasts of the Company's liquidity posilion and cash and cash equivalenis on Ihe Dasis of axpected cash flows.

Maturities of financlat liabilitles
The below lable analyses \he Company's ii ial liabilities into relevant maturily based on their conlraciual maturilies. The amounts disclosed in lhe lable are contraciual
undiscounted cash flows, balances due wilhin 12 monlhs equat their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is nol significant.

Carrying amount Conirachual cash flows Coniractual cash Mows|
¥ March 2023 <1 imenths . Uplo one year Here than one year|
. e i ot I
Trade paysbles 0,088 (Y -
Ciher Anancial Eabilites Lra) &4 -
Lease Nabiities nr L] 40
31 March 2022
Trade payables 13,123 13,723 -
Char financial Rabilities Ll [F4] -
Luass Uabiities pL ] 413 43

{c}. Market risk

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in iarket prices - such as foreign exchange rales and inleres] rates — will affect the Company's income or the value of #s
holdings of i ial instrimenls. Marke! risk is atidbuable to all market sk sensilive financial instruments Including foreign currency receivables and payables and long
term debt. The Company is exposad lo market sisk primarily relaled to foreign exchange rate risk, inleresl rale risk and the markel vale of Iha invesimenls. Thus, the
exposure to market risk is a funclion of investing and borowing activities and revenue generating and opevaling aclivities in foreign currency.

{i%. Currency risk

The Gompany is exposed 1o currency risk on account of forelgn currency transactions including recognized assels and lisbilities denominsled in a currency thal is not the
Company's functionsl currency (€), primarily in respact of Euros(€} snd Unfled Stales Doflar{$). The Company ensures that the nal exposure is kepl lo an acceptable tevel.

——
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{31} Financial risk management framework {Continued)
Exposurs to currency risk

The Company's exposure to forelan curency risk al the end of tha raporing period expressed in INR, are as follows;
As at 31 March 2023

Finsnchal acsals EUR Amount usp Amaun
(i Lakha} {INR in Lakhs) {nlakhs}  [INR o Lakha}

Trade recetvablen * . [} 2 . -

Het exposure ko loralgn cumency {ssseh) L] 22 - -

Financlal llakiliies

Tradn paystiac 11 1o L] L

Hat sxponre to forelgn cugency (kabilias) 11 1,010 0 |

As at 31 March 2022

Financial astes EUR (i lakhs)  Amourd (INR In Lakhs) USD (in Inkh3) Anmnlml;
5|

Tonde receivables [ H - -

el expomure bo foreign ciamency (assels) [ Fal - -

FInancial Rabiities

Trade paysbles. 2] 5An L] 1

el oxp to foreign (bl [Z] 6AT1 0 1

* Represents value lesa than Ry, | Lakh
Sensitivity analysla

Any change wilh respeo! 1o sﬁenglhanhg (wesakening) of the Indian Rupese agains| various currencies 8s at 31 March 2023, 31 March 2022 would have affected tha
i of fi ils denaminated in respeclive curencies and affecled aquily and profil o Jass by the amounis shown bekew, This analysis assumes Ihat

all other variables, in parlicular i rates,
Impact on profit before lax
31 March 2023 3 March 2023
EUR
- Incrasse by 3% [nL] {293
- Dacrozse by 5% L) =13
vsD
- Incraaus by 5% n 1]
- Drcranse by 5% 1] o

[ii}. Interest rate risk

Interest rale risk can be afther fair value Interes] rate risk or cash flow imlerest rale risk, Fair value interes! rate risk is the dsk of changes in fair values of fixed interest
ir ts b of Mucluations in the interest ralas, Cash Mow interest rate risk is the risk Ihat the fulure cash flows of fleating interes! bearing investments will
Nuctuale because of fluciuations in the ineres! rates.

Exposure (0 interest rate risk

The Company’s depositsiioans are all al fixed rate and are camied ol amontised cosl. They are Iherefore not subject to intarast rale risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since
neilher the carrying amounl nor the future cash flows will Rucluate because of a change in market interest rales.

Financing arrangemants
The Company has access lo following undrawn borrowing facililies al Ihe end of reporting period

31 March 2023 M March 2022
Expling within one year (bank gumranies) a2 1084
Expiring beyond one yrar - -
{38) Financial ratlo analysis
. Year anded Varlanes %

Sr.Mo. Parlculars Rasis H March 2023 31 March 2022
] Currand it Times Camrant masls F Current Enbifties 248 m %
2 Rakm on Equity *% Profi afler tax § Avarage Shacehoiders’ Equity 21% 14, 76% 1%
3 Teade Recabvables tumover ralio Times Revenue ¥om cpsiakom | Average brads receivable T.27 524 -1
4 Tiade Payables Tumover Timas Operating Coal / Avarape trade payables A7 214 35%
¥ el Caplisd Tumover Timss Revenue from oparalion § Warking capitaly 2.7% 248 1%
& el ProMfLoss) Mavgin % Met Pro®iloss) afler tax f Revenie rom operations 1% -11.29% 112%
T Relum o Capitsl employed * Eamings Befors Intarect and laxk 7 Capial Employeddt 5% 21.40% -121%
3 Working Capiiad = Curend Ascels - Current Liablibes
# Eamings before Inlarest and Faxn = Prof before tax + Finance cosia (recognized)
& Capel Employed = Equiy

1) Return on Equity (%) Improvemen in the curent year dus |6 incraase in profil which in Ihe previous year was aflacled malnly due to impacl of emenisation of Goodwil,

i Trade Payablos T {Timas}; Impr in the cumenl year du lo higher pay being sffecied 4o (he (racs payables, Thus inspita of an i in the direc operaling

expansss, (here has been ponding 4 in lrade payables, thersby improving 1he payables ratio.

Wi} Mot ProfitiLoss} Margin (% Improvemerd ki the cumend year dua Lo increase i proft which In the previcus year was affecled mainty due 1o impacl of amonisalion of Goodwill,

iv) Return on Capital smployad {%}: Imprevement in he cumrenl year due to increase in profl which in Ihe previcus year was affected mainty due lo impacl of amortisation of Goadwil.
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{39) Transfer Pricing

The Company's management has developed a system of mainl e of ink tion and documents as required by the Transfer pricing legislalion under Section 92 to
Saclion 92F of the kcoma lax Act, 1961, The Company's management is of lhe opinion ihat its intemational transactions are a1 arm's length o thal the aforesald legislalion
will not have an impacl an the fi jal stal s, paricularly on the L of 1ax exp and that of the provision for laxalion,

{40} Code on Soclal Securlty, 2020 .
The Padiament has approved the Code on Soclal Security, 2020 which would impact the conlribulions by the company towards Providenl Fund and Graluily. The effective
date from which the changes are applicable is yel 1o ba nolified and the rules for quanlifying ihe financial impact are yet to be framed. The Company will perfom Hs
evalualion and will give appropriale impaci in its financiat stalements in the period in which, iha Code becomes effective and the relal d rules 1o delermine he financial
impact are framed.

{#41) Reclassificatlon of previous year amount
Figuras of the previous year has been re-groupedire-arranged wherever necessary. Tha impacl of the same is not malarial lo the users of financial stalemenls,

{42) Subsequent event
The Company has evaluated al subsequent events ihrough 10 July 2023, the dale on which these financials are aulhorized for issuance. Mo adjusling or significant non-
adjusting event has occurred between 31 March 2023 and the dale of aulhorization of ihese financial slatements thal would have a malerial impact on (hese financial
statements or thal weuld waranl addilional disclosures.

As per our report of even date atlached.
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